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Board of Trustees 
 

William J. Fountain, Supervisor 

Larry N. Ciofu, Clerk 

Kathleen A. Horning, Treasurer 

Matthew J. Germane, Trustee 

Summer L. McMullen, Trustee 

Denise M. O’Connell, Trustee 

Joseph M. Petrucci, Trustee 

 
 

Board of Trustees Regular Meeting Agenda 

Hartland Township Hall 

Tuesday, August 16, 2022 

7:00 PM 

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Roll Call 

4. Approval of the Agenda 

5. Call to the Public 

6. Approval of the Consent Agenda 
a. Approve Payment of Bills 

b. Approve Post Audit of Disbursements Between Board Meetings 

c. 08-03-22 Hartland Township Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

7. Pending & New Business 
a. Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Audit Presentation 

b. Resolution: Hartland Woods Revised Assessment Roll 

8. Board Reports 

[BRIEF RECESS]  

9. Information / Discussion 
a. Manager's Report 

b. Assessing Department Annual Update 

10. Adjournment 
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Hartland Township Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memorandum 
 
 
Submitted By: Susan Case, Finance Clerk 

Subject: Approve Payment of Bills 

Date: August 9, 2022 

 

Recommended Action 

Move to approve the bills as presented for payment. 

 

 

 

 

Discussion 

Bills presented total $1,610,579.09.  The bills are available in the Finance office for review. 

 

Notable invoices include: 

$651,501.00 – D.V.M Utilities, Inc. – (M-59 Water Main Extension) 

$11,250.91 – Jennifer Nash – (Livingston County Sewage Disposal Bond, Series 2015) 

$503,778.20 – Livingston County Road Commission – (Hartland Woods Subdivision) 

$168,078.37 – Livingston County Drain Commission – (July 2022 Sewer O&M, Watershed Group 

Shared cost) 

$242,425.00 – Preiss Companies LLC – (Settlers Park Improvement Area & Settlers Park/Dunham Rd 

Sidewalk) 

 

 

 

 

 

Financial Impact 

Is a Budget Amendment Required? ☐Yes ☒No 

All expenses are covered under the amended FY23 budget. 

 

 

 

 

Attachments 

Bills for 08.16.2022 
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AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
27.59 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/06/2022

27.59 N08/16/202247889
SYLVANIA FLUORESCENT LAMPSFOA114-3128627-846505607/06/2022AMAZON.COMAMAZON.COM

Net Amount 1099Due Date
Discount Sep CKDisc. %Disc. DateCity/State/ZipInvoice Date

Gross Amount HoldPOCK Run DateAddressRef #
Invoice DescriptionBankInvoicePost DateVendor nameVendor Code

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 1/17Page:08/11/2022 12:59 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/16/2022 - 08/16/2022
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
232.86 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/13/2022
232.86 N08/16/202247885

SPORT FLYERFOA2316238807/13/20224 IMPRINT4IMPRINT

232.86 CONTRACTED SERVICES & RENTALS577-000-801.000

232.86 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
15.89 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/05/2022

15.89 N08/16/202247881
JULY 2022FOA221110149207/05/2022ADOBE INCADOBE

15.89 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-265-740.000

15.89 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
(34.97)N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/08/2022
(34.97)N08/16/202247928

CANCELLED FACE PAINTING ORDERFOA07082207/08/2022AMAZON.COMAMAZON.COM

(34.97)FARMERS MARKET101-751-956.000

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
19.07 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/12/2022

19.07 N08/16/202247895
2023 CALENDARFOA111-2046154-109065307/12/2022AMAZON.COMAMAZON.COM

19.07 SUPPLIES & POSTAGE101-253-727.000

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
599.90 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/19/2022
599.90 N08/16/202247890

WEBCAMSFOA113-0773749-245544807/19/2022AMAZON.COMAMAZON.COM

599.90 OPERATING SUPPLIES577-000-740.000

3



Net Amount 1099Due Date
Discount Sep CKDisc. %Disc. DateCity/State/ZipInvoice Date

Gross Amount HoldPOCK Run DateAddressRef #
Invoice DescriptionBankInvoicePost DateVendor nameVendor Code

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 2/17Page:08/11/2022 12:59 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/16/2022 - 08/16/2022
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
27.59 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/06/2022

27.59 N08/16/202247889
SYLVANIA FLUORESCENT LAMPSFOA114-3128627-846505607/06/2022AMAZON.COMAMAZON.COM

27.59 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-265-740.000

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
25.98 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/19/2022

25.98 N08/16/202247870
STORAGE BAGSFOA114-4039229-832182107/19/2022AMAZON.COMAMAZON.COM

25.98 SUPPLIES & POSTAGE101-400-727.000

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
35.97 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/12/2022

35.97 N08/16/202247882
IPHONE HOLSTER CASEFOA114-4651240-790824607/12/2022AMAZON.COMAMAZON.COM

35.97 SUPPLIES & POSTAGE101-172-727.000

673.54 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
199.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    TAWAS CITY MI, 4876408/01/2022
199.00 N08/16/2022PO BOX 59147868

MEMBERSHIP RENEWALFOA2531808/01/2022APT US & CAPT US&C

199.00 MEMBERSHIP & DUES101-253-804.000

199.00 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
72.98 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    ATLANTA GA, 30368-606707/21/2022

72.98 N08/16/2022PO BOX 11606747879
OIL, FILTERFOA07212207/21/2022AUTOZONE , INCAUTOZONE

72.98 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE TRUCKS536-000-930.002

72.98 VENDOR TOTAL: 4



AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
212.01 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    PHILADELPHIA PA, 19176-021907/03/2022
212.01 N08/16/2022P.O. BOX 7021947888

JULY 2022 - PHONE/INTERNET AT WTPFOA07032207/03/2022COMCAST COMCAST

Net Amount 1099Due Date
Discount Sep CKDisc. %Disc. DateCity/State/ZipInvoice Date

Gross Amount HoldPOCK Run DateAddressRef #
Invoice DescriptionBankInvoicePost DateVendor nameVendor Code

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 3/17Page:08/11/2022 12:59 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/16/2022 - 08/16/2022
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
185.49 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/14/2022
185.49 N08/16/202247898

DEFIBRILLATOR BATTERYFOA07142207/14/2022CARDIO PARTNERSCARDIO

185.49 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE101-265-930.000

185.49 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
57.47 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    CINCINNATI OH, 4526308/08/2022

57.47 N08/16/2022P.O. BOX 63091047908
MATSFOA412763102308/08/2022CINTAS CORPORATIONCINTAS

57.47 CONTRACTED SERVICES101-265-801.000

57.47 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
23.39 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    MILFORD MI, 4838008/08/2022

23.39 N08/16/20221340 WINDMILL LANE47907
REIMBURSEMENT FOR ELECTION SUPPLIESFOA08082208/08/2022CIOFU, LARRY NCIOFU

23.39 MISCELLANEOUS101-191-956.000

23.39 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
15.90 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/03/2022

15.90 N08/16/202247880
JULY 2022FOA161-0072998507/03/2022CISCO SYSTEMS, INCCISCO

15.90 PEG SERVER & SOFTWARE RENTAL577-000-946.000

15.90 VENDOR TOTAL:
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AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
18.94 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    CINCINNATI OH, 45274-030908/03/2022

18.94 N08/16/2022PO BOX 74030947924
AUGUST 2022 - HERO TEEN CENTERFOA20572399787008/03/2022CONSUMERS ENERGYCONSUMER

Net Amount 1099Due Date
Discount Sep CKDisc. %Disc. DateCity/State/ZipInvoice Date

Gross Amount HoldPOCK Run DateAddressRef #
Invoice DescriptionBankInvoicePost DateVendor nameVendor Code

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 4/17Page:08/11/2022 12:59 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/16/2022 - 08/16/2022
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
212.01 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    PHILADELPHIA PA, 19176-021907/03/2022
212.01 N08/16/2022P.O. BOX 7021947888

JULY 2022 - PHONE/INTERNET AT WTPFOA07032207/03/2022COMCAST COMCAST

71.77 TELEPHONE536-000-851.000
140.24 INTERNET536-000-805.000

212.01 

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
332.10 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    PHILADELPHIA PA, 19176-021907/01/2022
332.10 N08/16/2022P.O. BOX 7021947874

JULY 2022 - CABLE/INTERNET AT TWP HALLFOA07062207/01/2022COMCAST COMCAST

219.90 INTERNET577-000-805.000
112.20 CABLE TV FEES577-000-806.000

332.10 

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
673.80 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    PHILADELPHIA PA, 19176-021907/21/2022
673.80 N08/16/2022P.O. BOX 7021947891

JUNE 2022FOA07212207/21/2022COMCAST COMCAST

673.80 INTERNET577-000-805.000

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
168.45 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    PHILADELPHIA PA, 19176-021907/25/2022
168.45 N08/16/2022P.O. BOX 7021947892

JULY 2022 - INTERNET AT WTPFOA07252207/25/2022COMCAST COMCAST

168.45 INTERNET536-000-805.000

1,386.36 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
15.00 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    CINCINNATI OH, 45274-030908/03/2022

15.00 N08/16/2022PO BOX 74030947925
AUGUST 2022 - WTPFOA20323231607308/03/2022CONSUMERS ENERGYCONSUMER

15.00 UTILITIES - GAS536-000-920.001
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Net Amount 1099Due Date
Discount Sep CKDisc. %Disc. DateCity/State/ZipInvoice Date

Gross Amount HoldPOCK Run DateAddressRef #
Invoice DescriptionBankInvoicePost DateVendor nameVendor Code

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 5/17Page:08/11/2022 12:59 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/16/2022 - 08/16/2022
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
18.94 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    CINCINNATI OH, 45274-030908/03/2022

18.94 N08/16/2022PO BOX 74030947924
AUGUST 2022 - HERO TEEN CENTERFOA20572399787008/03/2022CONSUMERS ENERGYCONSUMER

18.94 UTILITIES - GAS101-265-920.001

33.94 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
225.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/07/2022
225.00 N08/16/202247883

COLORING CONTEST TOKENSFOA07072207/07/2022CULVERSCULVERS

225.00 SPECIAL EVENTS101-577-956.000

225.00 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
651,501.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    STERLING HEIGHTS MI, 4831308/07/2022
651,501.00 N08/16/20226045 SIMS DRIVE, SUITE 247930

M-59 WATER MAIN EXTENSIONFOACONSTR EST 108/07/2022D.V.M UTILITIES, INC.DVM

651,501.00 WATER CONSTRUCT IN PROGRESS539-000-150.000

651,501.00 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
300.00 Y08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    HARTLAND MI, 4835308/01/2022
300.00 N08/16/2022PO BOX 24147857

AUGUST 2022 - PARKSFOA11496708/01/2022DOUGIE'S DISPOSAL & RECYCLINGDOUGIES

300.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES101-751-801.000

300.00 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
1,322.44 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /     OH, 45274-078607/31/2022

1,322.44 N08/16/2022P.O BOX 740786
CINCINNATI

47919
JULY 2022 - MILLPOINTE, FIDDLERS GROVE, WALNUT RIDGEFOA20001380886707/31/2022DTE ENERGY0070

245.78 MILLPOINTE STREETLIGHTS DEPOSIT101-000-282.001
22.29 FIDDLAR GROVE STREETLIGHT DEPOSIT101-000-282.002
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AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
140.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    DETROIT MI, 48277-210708/02/2022
140.00 N08/16/2022P.O. BOX 77210747901

HOSE CONNECTION VACUUM BREAKERFOAS104676459.00108/02/2022ETNA SUPPLY COMPANYETNA

Net Amount 1099Due Date
Discount Sep CKDisc. %Disc. DateCity/State/ZipInvoice Date

Gross Amount HoldPOCK Run DateAddressRef #
Invoice DescriptionBankInvoicePost DateVendor nameVendor Code

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 6/17Page:08/11/2022 12:59 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/16/2022 - 08/16/2022
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

23.87 WALNUT RIDGE STREETLIGHTS DEPOSIT101-000-282.003
1,030.50 STREET LIGHTS101-448-921.000

1,322.44 

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
49.87 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /     OH, 45274-078607/01/2022

49.87 N08/16/2022P.O BOX 740786
CINCINNATI

47909
JULY 2022 - SETTLERS PARK PAVILIONFOA922090901-07/202207/01/2022DTE ENERGY0070

49.87 UTILITIES - ELECTRIC101-751-920.002

1,372.31 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
149.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/02/2022
149.00 N08/16/202247896

MENS PANTSFOA07022207/02/2022DULUTHDULUTH

149.00 UNIFORMS/CLOTHING ALLOWANCE536-000-719.100

149.00 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
752.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    DETROIT MI, 48277-210707/28/2022
752.00 N08/16/2022P.O. BOX 77210747858

METER PARTSFOAS104660798.00107/28/2022ETNA SUPPLY COMPANYETNA

752.00 METER COSTS536-000-741.000

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
(752.00)N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    DETROIT MI, 48277-210708/05/2022
(752.00)N08/16/2022P.O. BOX 77210747911

CREDIT FOR METER SUPPLIES FOAS104675271.00108/05/2022ETNA SUPPLY COMPANYETNA

(752.00)METER COSTS536-000-741.000
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AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
26.99 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/11/2022

26.99 N08/16/202247899
HARTLANDWATER.COMFOA225756405607/11/2022GO DADDYGODADDY

Net Amount 1099Due Date
Discount Sep CKDisc. %Disc. DateCity/State/ZipInvoice Date

Gross Amount HoldPOCK Run DateAddressRef #
Invoice DescriptionBankInvoicePost DateVendor nameVendor Code

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 7/17Page:08/11/2022 12:59 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/16/2022 - 08/16/2022
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
140.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    DETROIT MI, 48277-210708/02/2022
140.00 N08/16/2022P.O. BOX 77210747901

HOSE CONNECTION VACUUM BREAKERFOAS104676459.00108/02/2022ETNA SUPPLY COMPANYETNA

140.00 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE101-751-930.000

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
1,155.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    DETROIT MI, 48277-210708/05/2022
1,155.00 N08/16/2022P.O. BOX 77210747910

METER FLANGE KITSFOAS104681583.00108/05/2022ETNA SUPPLY COMPANYETNA

1,155.00 METER COSTS536-000-741.000

1,295.00 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
360.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    WEST BLOOMFIELD MI, 4832507/26/2022
360.00 N08/16/2022PO BOX 25130247854

WINDOW CLEANING AT TWP HALLFOA2475-3975307/26/2022FISH WINDOW CLEANINGFISH

360.00 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE101-265-930.000

360.00 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
89.00 Y08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    HOWELL MI, 4884304/06/2022

89.00 N08/16/202210099 BERGIN RD, BLDG D47912
ROLL SIGN PRINTFOA1776408/09/2022FIVE STAR SIGNS, INC.FIVESTAR

89.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES536-000-740.000

89.00 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
175.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    BRIGHTON MI, 4811608/01/2022
175.00 N08/16/2022P.O. BOX 68647863

AUGUST 2022FOA08012208/01/2022GEORGE MOSES COMARKETEER

175.00 FARMERS MARKET101-751-956.000

175.00 VENDOR TOTAL:
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Net Amount 1099Due Date
Discount Sep CKDisc. %Disc. DateCity/State/ZipInvoice Date

Gross Amount HoldPOCK Run DateAddressRef #
Invoice DescriptionBankInvoicePost DateVendor nameVendor Code

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 8/17Page:08/11/2022 12:59 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/16/2022 - 08/16/2022
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
26.99 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/11/2022

26.99 N08/16/202247899
HARTLANDWATER.COMFOA225756405607/11/2022GO DADDYGODADDY

26.99 PRINTING & PUBLICATIONS536-000-900.000

26.99 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
10.50 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 08/02/2022

10.50 N08/16/202247865
JULY 2022 DOG LICENSE PMTSFOA08022208/02/2022HARTLAND TOWNSHIP GENERAL FUND0001

10.50 DOG LICENSES ESCROW701-000-290.250

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
279.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 08/09/2022
279.00 N08/16/202247921

JULY 2022 MOBILE HOME TAX DISBURSEMENTFOA08092208/09/2022HARTLAND TOWNSHIP GENERAL FUND0001

279.00 MOBILE HOME FEES ESCROW701-000-290.300

289.50 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
2,894.40 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    BIRMINGHAM AL, 35283-067406/23/2022

2,894.40 N08/16/2022MSC#729
P.O. BOX 830674

47887
6/23/22 HYPOCHLORITE SOLUTIONFOA88903606/23/2022JCI JONES CHEMICALS, INCJCIJONES

2,894.40 WATER TREAT. CHEMICALS536-000-740.001

2,894.40 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
11,250.91 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    HOWELL MI, 48843-758108/09/2022

11,250.91 N08/16/2022C/O BRIAN JONCKHEERE, LCDC
2300 E. GRAND RIVER, STE 105

47923
LIV COUNTY SEWAGE DISPOSAL BOND, SERIES 2015FOA08092208/09/2022JENNIFER M. NASHLIVINGCO

11,250.91 BOND INTEREST PAYMENT591-000-997.000
10



AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
167,696.22 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    HOWELL MI, 4884307/29/2022

167,696.22 N08/16/20222300 E. GRAND RIVER
STE. 105

47869
JULY 2022 SEWER O&MFOA352307/29/2022LIVINGSTON CTY.DRAIN COMMISSIO2909

Net Amount 1099Due Date
Discount Sep CKDisc. %Disc. DateCity/State/ZipInvoice Date

Gross Amount HoldPOCK Run DateAddressRef #
Invoice DescriptionBankInvoicePost DateVendor nameVendor Code

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 9/17Page:08/11/2022 12:59 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/16/2022 - 08/16/2022
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

11,250.91 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
104.50 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    HOWELL MI, 4884308/02/2022
104.50 N08/16/2022200 E. GRAND RIVER47866

JULY 2022 DOG LICENSE PMTSFOA08022208/02/2022LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER0220

104.50 DOG LICENSES ESCROW701-000-290.250

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
859.08 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    HOWELL MI, 4884308/04/2022
859.08 N08/16/2022200 E. GRAND RIVER47920

BOR/PRE ADJUSTMENTSFOA08042208/04/2022LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER0220

278.56 TAX CHARGEBACKS101-299-850.000
239.64 TAX CHARGEBACKS204-000-850.000
340.88 TAX CHARGEBACKS206-000-850.000

859.08 

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
1,395.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    HOWELL MI, 4884308/09/2022
1,395.00 N08/16/2022200 E. GRAND RIVER47922

JULY 2022 MOBILE HOME TAX DISBURSEMENTFOA08092208/09/2022LIVINGSTON COUNTY TREASURER0220

1,395.00 MOBILE HOME FEES ESCROW701-000-290.300

2,358.58 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
503,778.20 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    HOWELL MI, 4884307/30/2022
503,778.20 N08/16/20223535 GRAND OAKS DRIVE47850

HARTLAND WOODS SUBDIVISIONFOA726607/30/2022LIVINGSTON CTY ROAD COMMISSION0210

503,778.20 DUE FROM HARTLAND WOODS ROAD SAD101-000-084.453

503,778.20 VENDOR TOTAL:
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Net Amount 1099Due Date
Discount Sep CKDisc. %Disc. DateCity/State/ZipInvoice Date

Gross Amount HoldPOCK Run DateAddressRef #
Invoice DescriptionBankInvoicePost DateVendor nameVendor Code

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 10/17Page:08/11/2022 12:59 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/16/2022 - 08/16/2022
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
167,696.22 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    HOWELL MI, 4884307/29/2022

167,696.22 N08/16/20222300 E. GRAND RIVER
STE. 105

47869
JULY 2022 SEWER O&MFOA352307/29/2022LIVINGSTON CTY.DRAIN COMMISSIO2909

167,696.22 LCDC CONTRACT SERVICES590-000-801.008

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
382.15 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    HOWELL MI, 4884307/29/2022

382.15 N08/16/20222300 E. GRAND RIVER
STE. 105

47903
WATERSHED GROUP SHARED COSTFOA352907/29/2022LIVINGSTON CTY.DRAIN COMMISSIO2909

382.15 MISCELLANEOUS101-465-956.000

168,078.37 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
9.99 N08/16/2022
0.00 Y0.0000  /  /    CHICAGO IL, 60677-300907/11/2022

9.99 N08/16/2022
3964 SOLUTIONS CENTER

47884
JULY 2022FOA07112207/11/2022LIVINGSTON DAILY PRESS & ARGUSLDPA

9.99 CONTRACTED SERVICES101-577-801.000

9.99 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
19.18 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 06/27/2022

19.18 N08/16/202247871
JUNE 2022FOA655506/27/2022MASTERS TELECOM LLCMASTERS

19.18 TELEPHONE101-265-851.000

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
19.61 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/25/2022

19.61 N08/16/202247876
JULY 2022FOA737407/25/2022MASTERS TELECOM LLCMASTERS

19.61 TELEPHONE101-265-851.000
12



AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
22.00 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    CINCINNATI OH, 45274-252008/09/2022

22.00 N08/16/2022PO BOX 74252047917
SEPT 2022 - PA8741424FOASEPT 202208/09/2022MICHIGAN.COMLCDPA

Net Amount 1099Due Date
Discount Sep CKDisc. %Disc. DateCity/State/ZipInvoice Date

Gross Amount HoldPOCK Run DateAddressRef #
Invoice DescriptionBankInvoicePost DateVendor nameVendor Code

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 11/17Page:08/11/2022 12:59 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/16/2022 - 08/16/2022
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

38.79 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
305.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    TRAVERSE CITY MI, 4968406/28/2022
305.00 N08/16/20224020 COPPER VIEW STE 13047872

2022 MGFOA FALL INSTITUTEFOA06282206/28/2022MGFOAMGFOA

305.00 EDUCATION/TRAINING/CONVENTION101-192-957.000

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
120.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    TRAVERSE CITY MI, 4968407/21/2022
120.00 N08/16/20224020 COPPER VIEW STE 13047875

MEMBERSHIP RENEWALFOA07212207/21/2022MGFOAMGFOA

120.00 MEMBERSHIP & DUES101-192-804.000

425.00 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
60.00 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    NOVI MI, 4837507/12/2022

60.00 N08/16/2022C/O JEANNIE NILAND - CITY OF NOVI
45175 TEN MILE ROAD

47897
MEMBERSHIPFOA07122207/12/2022MI ASSOC. CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICERSMACEO

60.00 MEMBERSHIP & DUES101-400-804.000

60.00 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
165.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    OKEMOS MI, 4886407/14/2022
165.00 N08/16/20222127 UNIVERSITY PARK DR, STE 34047877

2022 MRWA OUTDOOR EXPO FOA07142207/14/2022MICHIGAN RURAL WATER ASSOCIATIONMRWA

165.00 EDUCATION/TRAINING/CONVENTION536-000-957.000

165.00 VENDOR TOTAL:
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AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
8.99 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    MILFORD MI, 4838008/02/2022
8.99 N08/16/20223455 W. HIGHLAND ROAD47867

ZIPLOC BAGSFOAK6373308/02/2022PETER'S TRUE VALUE HARDWARE1180

Net Amount 1099Due Date
Discount Sep CKDisc. %Disc. DateCity/State/ZipInvoice Date

Gross Amount HoldPOCK Run DateAddressRef #
Invoice DescriptionBankInvoicePost DateVendor nameVendor Code

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 12/17Page:08/11/2022 12:59 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/16/2022 - 08/16/2022
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
22.00 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    CINCINNATI OH, 45274-252008/09/2022

22.00 N08/16/2022PO BOX 74252047917
SEPT 2022 - PA8741424FOASEPT 202208/09/2022MICHIGAN.COMLCDPA

22.00 MEMBERSHIP & DUES101-101-804.000

22.00 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
70.88 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    SOUTHFIELD MI, 4803408/08/2022

70.88 N08/16/202221068 BRIDGE ST.47914
PEST CONTROL AT HERO TEEN CENTERFOA23137189208/08/2022ORKINORKIN

70.88 CONTRACTED SERVICES101-265-801.000

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
71.85 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    SOUTHFIELD MI, 4803408/08/2022

71.85 N08/16/202221068 BRIDGE ST.47915
PEST CONTROL AT TOWNSHIP HALLFOA23137214508/08/2022ORKINORKIN

71.85 CONTRACTED SERVICES101-265-801.000

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
68.00 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    SOUTHFIELD MI, 4803408/08/2022

68.00 N08/16/202221068 BRIDGE ST.47913
PEST CONTROL AT WTPFOA23137322908/08/2022ORKINORKIN

68.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES101-265-801.000

210.73 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
20.98 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    MILFORD MI, 4838008/03/2022

20.98 N08/16/20223455 W. HIGHLAND ROAD47900
SPRAY PAINTFOA6376608/03/2022PETER'S TRUE VALUE HARDWARE1180

20.98 OPERATING SUPPLIES536-000-740.000
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Net Amount 1099Due Date
Discount Sep CKDisc. %Disc. DateCity/State/ZipInvoice Date

Gross Amount HoldPOCK Run DateAddressRef #
Invoice DescriptionBankInvoicePost DateVendor nameVendor Code

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 13/17Page:08/11/2022 12:59 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/16/2022 - 08/16/2022
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
8.99 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    MILFORD MI, 4838008/02/2022
8.99 N08/16/20223455 W. HIGHLAND ROAD47867

ZIPLOC BAGSFOAK6373308/02/2022PETER'S TRUE VALUE HARDWARE1180

8.99 OPERATING SUPPLIES536-000-740.000

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
21.96 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    MILFORD MI, 4838008/04/2022

21.96 N08/16/20223455 W. HIGHLAND ROAD47904
FENCE POST FOR TICK SIGNSFOAK6378208/04/2022PETER'S TRUE VALUE HARDWARE1180

21.96 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE101-751-930.000

51.93 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
34,750.00 Y08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    FENTON MI, 4843007/05/2022
34,750.00 N08/16/20228211 CLYDE ROAD47927

SETTLERS PARK IMPROVEMENT AREAFOA1477307/05/2022PREISS COMPANIES LLCPREISS

34,750.00 PARKS CAPITAL OUTLAY285-751-970.000

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
207,675.00 Y08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    FENTON MI, 4843007/05/2022
207,675.00 N08/16/20228211 CLYDE ROAD47926

SETTLERS PARK/DUNHAM RD SIDEWALKFOA1477407/05/2022PREISS COMPANIES LLCPREISS

207,675.00 SIDEWALKS285-444-969.005

242,425.00 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
335.34 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    TAYLOR MI, 4818005/20/2022
335.34 N08/16/202212005 BEECH DALY47860

ELECTION SUPPLIESFOA22377808/01/2022PRINTING SYSTEMS, INC.7532

335.34 SUPPLIES & POSTAGE101-191-727.000

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
1,393.86 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    TAYLOR MI, 4818006/24/2022
1,393.86 N08/16/202212005 BEECH DALY47861

ELECTION SUPPLIESFOA22387808/01/2022PRINTING SYSTEMS, INC.7532
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AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
29.00 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/17/2022

29.00 N08/16/202247886
JULY 2022FOA07172207/17/2022SHUTTERSTOCK.COMSHUTTERSTO

Net Amount 1099Due Date
Discount Sep CKDisc. %Disc. DateCity/State/ZipInvoice Date

Gross Amount HoldPOCK Run DateAddressRef #
Invoice DescriptionBankInvoicePost DateVendor nameVendor Code

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 14/17Page:08/11/2022 12:59 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/16/2022 - 08/16/2022
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

1,393.86 SUPPLIES & POSTAGE101-191-727.000

1,729.20 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
27.00 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 06/28/2022

27.00 N08/16/202247873
JUNE 2022FOA06282206/28/2022REALITY-BASED LEADERSHIPRBL

27.00 EDUCATION/TRAINING/CONVENTION101-192-957.000

27.00 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
144.99 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    MATTOON IL, 6193807/11/2022
144.99 N08/16/20224216 DEWITT AVE47893

WEED FILLERFOA07112207/11/2022RURAL KINGRURALKING

144.99 REPAIRS & MAINTENANCE101-265-930.000

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
133.15 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    MATTOON IL, 6193807/21/2022
133.15 N08/16/20224216 DEWITT AVE47894

CLOTHINGFOA07212207/21/2022RURAL KINGRURALKING

127.16 UNIFORMS/CLOTHING ALLOWANCE536-000-719.100
5.99 OPERATING SUPPLIES536-000-740.000

133.15 

278.14 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
530.00 Y08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    HOWELL MI, 4884307/25/2022
530.00 N08/16/20225550 MITCHEL WAY47856

20 YD DUMPSTER RENTAL AT WTPFOA14720807/25/2022SAN MARINO EXCAVATING, INC.SANMARINO

530.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES536-000-801.000

530.00 VENDOR TOTAL:
16



Net Amount 1099Due Date
Discount Sep CKDisc. %Disc. DateCity/State/ZipInvoice Date

Gross Amount HoldPOCK Run DateAddressRef #
Invoice DescriptionBankInvoicePost DateVendor nameVendor Code

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 15/17Page:08/11/2022 12:59 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/16/2022 - 08/16/2022
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
29.00 N08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /       , 07/17/2022

29.00 N08/16/202247886
JULY 2022FOA07172207/17/2022SHUTTERSTOCK.COMSHUTTERSTO

29.00 CONTRACTED SERVICES101-577-801.000

29.00 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
7,757.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    ROCHESTER HILLS MI, 4830707/28/2022
7,757.00 N08/16/2022905 SOUTH BLVD EAST47855

M-59 WATER MAIN CE THRU 7/3/22FOA9132807/28/2022SPALDING DEDECKERSPALDING

7,757.00 WATER CONSTRUCT IN PROGRESS539-000-150.000

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
530.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    ROCHESTER HILLS MI, 4830708/01/2022
530.00 N08/16/2022905 SOUTH BLVD EAST47864

DUNHAM RD SIDEWALK THRU 7/3/22FOA9140508/01/2022SPALDING DEDECKERSPALDING

530.00 SIDEWALKS285-444-969.005

8,287.00 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
109.50 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    DALLAS TX, 75266-040907/30/2022
109.50 N08/16/2022PO BOX 66040947859

MISC SUPPLIESFOA806707560807/30/2022STAPLES STAPLES

37.98 SUPPLIES & POSTAGE101-172-727.000
16.77 SUPPLIES & POSTAGE101-191-727.000
54.75 SUPPLIES & POSTAGE101-172-727.000

109.50 

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
295.99 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    DALLAS TX, 75266-040908/06/2022
295.99 N08/16/2022PO BOX 66040947918

MISC SUPPLIESFOA806715621408/06/2022STAPLES STAPLES

295.99 SUPPLIES & POSTAGE101-172-727.000
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AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
532.50 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    CHICAGO IL, 60674-861807/27/2022
532.50 N08/16/2022P.O. BOX 7400861847852

WWTP LTM/REPORTING THRU 7/15/22FOAH1922034507/27/2022WOOD ENVIRONMENT & INFRASTRUCTUREWOOD

Net Amount 1099Due Date
Discount Sep CKDisc. %Disc. DateCity/State/ZipInvoice Date

Gross Amount HoldPOCK Run DateAddressRef #
Invoice DescriptionBankInvoicePost DateVendor nameVendor Code

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 16/17Page:08/11/2022 12:59 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/16/2022 - 08/16/2022
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

405.49 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
14.97 Y08/16/2022
0.00 N0.0000  /  /    HOWELL MI, 4884307/19/2022

14.97 N08/16/20229552 E HIGHLAND RD47878
3 CLIPBOARDSFOA07192207/19/2022THE ONE STOP SHOPONESTOP

14.97 OPERATING SUPPLIES536-000-740.000

14.97 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
384.81 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    GURNEE IL, 60031-900408/04/2022
384.81 N08/16/2022P.O. BOX 900447916

TUBINGFOA6737208/04/2022USA BLUE BOOKUSA

384.81 OPERATING SUPPLIES536-000-740.000

384.81 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
2,975.00 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    ALLENDALE MI, 4940107/07/2022
2,975.00 N08/16/20226620 LAKE MICHIGAN DR47862

2022 ANNUAL INSPECTION OF OUTDOOR SIRENSFOA3008007/07/2022WEST SHORE SERVICES, INC.1250

2,975.00 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE206-000-930.000

2,975.00 VENDOR TOTAL:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
4,937.46 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    CHICAGO IL, 60674-861807/27/2022
4,937.46 N08/16/2022P.O. BOX 7400861847853

WATER SUPPLY ASSISTANCE THRU 7/15/22FOAH1922034407/27/2022WOOD ENVIRONMENT & INFRASTRUCTUREWOOD

4,937.46 TREATMENT PLANT SAMPLING101-441-801.007

18



Net Amount 1099Due Date
Discount Sep CKDisc. %Disc. DateCity/State/ZipInvoice Date

Gross Amount HoldPOCK Run DateAddressRef #
Invoice DescriptionBankInvoicePost DateVendor nameVendor Code

INVOICE APPROVAL BY INVOICE REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 17/17Page:08/11/2022 12:59 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

EXP CHECK RUN DATES 08/16/2022 - 08/16/2022
BOTH JOURNALIZED AND UNJOURNALIZED

OPEN - CHECK TYPE: PAPER CHECK

AMOUNTDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Open
532.50 N08/16/2022

0.00 N0.0000  /  /    CHICAGO IL, 60674-861807/27/2022
532.50 N08/16/2022P.O. BOX 7400861847852

WWTP LTM/REPORTING THRU 7/15/22FOAH1922034507/27/2022WOOD ENVIRONMENT & INFRASTRUCTUREWOOD

532.50 TREATMENT PLANT SAMPLING101-441-801.007

5,469.96 VENDOR TOTAL:

1,789.00 Fund 701 - TRUST AND AGENCY
11,250.91 Fund 591 - LAKE TYRONE 2015 SEWER SAD

167,696.22 Fund 590 - SEWER OPERATIONS & MAINTENANCE FUND
1,854.56 Fund 577 - CABLE TV FUND

659,258.00 Fund 539 - WATER REPLACEMENT FUND
6,040.73 Fund 536 - WATER SYSTEM FUND

242,955.00 Fund 285 - CLFRF GRANT 
3,315.88 Fund 206 - FIRE OPERATING

239.64 Fund 204 - MUNICIPAL STREET FUND
516,179.15 Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND

FUND TOTALS:

1,610,579.09 TOTAL - ALL VENDORS:
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Hartland Township Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memorandum 
 
 
Submitted By: Susan Case, Finance Clerk 

Subject: Approve Post Audit of Disbursements Between Board Meetings 

Date: August 9, 2022 

 

Recommended Action 

Move to approve the presented disbursements under the post-audit resolution. 

 

 

 

 

Discussion 

The following disbursements have been made since the last board meeting: 

 

Accounts Payable – $1,053.81 

 

August 15, 2022 Payroll - $70,329.77 

 

 

 

 

Financial Impact 

Is a Budget Amendment Required? ☐Yes ☒No 

All expenses are covered under the amended FY23 budget. 

 

 

 

 

Attachments 

Post Audit Bills List 07.28.2022 

Payroll for 08.15.2022 
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CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 1/1Page
:

08/09/2022 12:32 PM
User: SUSANC
DB: Hartland

CHECK DATE FROM 07/28/2022 - 07/28/2022

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

41.92 101-265-920.001UTILITIES - GASCONSUMERS ENERGY42955FOA07/28/2022

45.13 101-000-232.000DUE TO EMPLOYEESVERIZON WIRELESS42956FOA07/28/2022

746.86 101-265-851.000TELEPHONE42956

179.89 536-000-851.000TELEPHONE42956

40.01 577-000-801.000CONTRACTED SERVICES & RENTALS42956

1,011.89 

      1,053.81 TOTAL

         40.01 CONTRACTED SERVICES & RENTALS577-000-801.000

        179.89 TELEPHONE536-000-851.000

         41.92 UTILITIES - GAS101-265-920.001

        746.86 TELEPHONE101-265-851.000

         45.13 DUE TO EMPLOYEES101-000-232.000
--- GL TOTALS --- 

1,053.81 TOTAL OF 2 CHECKSTOTAL - ALL FUNDS
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StatusDepositCheck AmountGrossNameCheck NumberBankCheck Date

DirectPhysicalCheck

For Check Dates 08/15/2022 to 08/15/2022 

08/03/2022 02:13 PM Check Register Report For Hartland Township Page 1 of 1

Open0.002,275.892,275.89ICMA VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENT          17171FOA08/15/2022

Open0.003,548.673,548.67ICMA VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENT          17172FOA08/15/2022

Open0.001,689.301,689.30ICMA VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENT          17173FOA08/15/2022

Cleared1,220.990.001,425.46 BEAUDOIN, DIANA K         DD7972FOA08/15/2022

Cleared1,523.030.001,976.00 BEDUHN, TIMOTHY L.A.         DD7973FOA08/15/2022

Cleared1,174.840.001,515.92 BERNARDI, MELYNDA A         DD7974FOA08/15/2022

Cleared1,710.650.002,423.85 BROOKS, TYLER J         DD7975FOA08/15/2022

Cleared1,150.380.001,767.92 CASE, SUSAN E         DD7976FOA08/15/2022

Cleared1,980.740.002,746.24 CIOFU, LARRY N         DD7977FOA08/15/2022

Cleared852.930.00968.15 COSGROVE, HEATHER H         DD7978FOA08/15/2022

Cleared2,555.770.003,601.41 DRYDEN-HOGAN, SUSAN A         DD7979FOA08/15/2022

Cleared315.880.00348.50 HAASETH, GWYN M         DD7980FOA08/15/2022

Cleared1,811.610.003,211.94 HEASLIP, JAMES B         DD7981FOA08/15/2022

Cleared1,990.140.002,746.24 HORNING, KATHLEEN A         DD7982FOA08/15/2022

Cleared1,167.520.001,628.63 HUBBARD, TONYA S         DD7983FOA08/15/2022

Cleared1,213.450.001,971.90 JOHNSON, LISA          DD7984FOA08/15/2022

Cleared28.320.0030.66 KENDALL, ANTHONY S         DD7985FOA08/15/2022

Cleared2,519.590.003,592.16 LANGER, TROY D         DD7986FOA08/15/2022

Cleared587.030.00682.56 LOFTUS, DANIEL M         DD7987FOA08/15/2022

Cleared347.090.00600.38 LOUIS, CASEY          DD7988FOA08/15/2022

Cleared2,523.630.003,446.80 LUCE, MICHAEL T         DD7989FOA08/15/2022

Cleared1,382.600.001,787.57 MORGANROTH, CAROL L         DD7990FOA08/15/2022

Cleared825.180.00988.00 NIXON, MITCHELL A         DD7991FOA08/15/2022

Cleared825.170.00988.00 RADLEY, JAMES W         DD7992FOA08/15/2022

Cleared1,542.070.002,038.61 SHOLLACK, DONNA M         DD7993FOA08/15/2022

Cleared1,168.460.001,518.00 SOSNOWSKI, SHERI R         DD7994FOA08/15/2022

Cleared1,492.020.002,067.06 VERMILLION, KAREN L         DD7995FOA08/15/2022

Cleared2,561.340.004,266.67 WEST, ROBERT M         DD7996FOA08/15/2022

Cleared1,736.770.002,730.51 WYATT, MARTHA K         DD7997FOA08/15/2022

Cleared0.0011,746.7711,746.77FEDERAL TAX DEPOSIT         EFT644FOA08/15/2022
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Total Check Stubs:

Total Physical Checks:

36,207.2019,260.6370,329.77Number of Checks:  030Totals:

22



Hartland Township Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memorandum 
 
 
Submitted By: Larry Ciofu, Clerk 

Subject: 08-03-22 Hartland Township Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

Date: August 11, 2022 

 

Recommended Action 

Move to approve the Hartland Township Board Regular Meeting minutes for August 3, 2022. 

 

 

 

 

Discussion 

Draft minutes are attached for review. 

 

 

 

 

Financial Impact 

None 

 

 

 

Attachments 

8-3-2022 HTB Minutes - DRAFT 

 

 
 

23



HARTLAND TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
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DRAFT 

1. Call to Order 
 

The meeting was called to order by Supervisor Fountain at 7:00 p.m. 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
PRESENT:  Supervisor Fountain, Clerk Ciofu, Treasurer Horning, Trustee Germane, Trustee 

McMullen, Trustee O'Connell 

ABSENT:  Trustee Petrucci 

 

Also present were Township Manager Robert West, Public Works Director Michael Luce, and Planning 

Director Troy Langer. 

 

4. Approval of the Agenda 

 
Move to approve the agenda for the August 3, 2022, Hartland Township Board meeting as 

presented.  
Motion made by Treasurer Horning, Seconded by Trustee O'Connell. 

Voting Yea: Supervisor Fountain, Clerk Ciofu, Treasurer Horning, Trustee Germane, Trustee 

McMullen, Trustee O'Connell 

Voting Nay:  None 

Absent:   Trustee Petrucci 

 

5. Call to the Public 

 
No one came forward. 

 

6. Approval of the Consent Agenda 

 
Move to approve the consent agenda for the August 3, 2022 Hartland Township Board Meeting 

as presented. 
Motion made by Clerk Ciofu, Seconded by Trustee Germane. 

Voting Yea: Supervisor Fountain, Clerk Ciofu, Treasurer Horning, Trustee Germane, Trustee 

McMullen, Trustee O'Connell 

Voting Nay:  None 

Absent:   Trustee Petrucci 

 

a. Approve Payment of Bills 

b. Approve Post Audit of Disbursements Between Board Meetings 

c. 07-19-22 Hartland Township Board Regular Meeting Minutes 

d. 07-19-22 Hartland Township Board Closed Session Meeting Minutes 

 

7. Pending & New Business 

 
a. Resolution to Amend Resolution No. 11-R010 Interfund Loan Interest 
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Treasurer Horning stated that this is just a change in the verbiage of the Resolution to take out 

Multi-Bank Securities and to insert that we will look at any of the banks that we are currently 

using and take the highest interest rate plus the additional 1% for our administration fee. Multi-

Bank Securities became an institution that no longer collateralized our funds, so we stopped 

using them around 2017. 

 

Motion to approve Resolution No. 22-R017, regarding Interfund Loan Interest. 
Motion made by Treasurer Horning, Seconded by Clerk Ciofu. Roll call vote taken. 

Voting Yea:  Supervisor Fountain, Clerk Ciofu, Treasurer Horning, Trustee Germane, 

Trustee McMullen, Trustee O'Connell 

Voting Nay:  None 

Absent:   Trustee Petrucci     Motion passed: 6-0-1 

 

b. Site Plan/PD Application #22-006, Preliminary Planned Development Site Plan – Hartland 

Senior Community, a Single-Family Residential Planned Development (PD) 

 

The applicants were invited forward by Supervisor Fountain. Planning Director Troy Langer 

stated this is a Planned Development (PD) residential project and gave a brief overview of the 

PD process. He stated that the PD process allows some flexibility with the zoning ordinances, 

essentially allowing an applicant to present their plan which is then reviewed by the Township 

within certain parameters. The process initially involves a concept plan where the applicant 

will submit a concept idea of something they would like to do. The concept plan goes in front 

of the Planning Commission (PC) and the Hartland Township Board (HTB). No formal 

decisions are made at the concept review but comments are provided. The applicant will then 

weigh those comments and decide whether or not to proceed with the project. This project has 

gone through conceptual review. The next phase is the preliminary phase which is bit more 

detailed as we would need to see a more precise site plan, with landscape plans and building 

elevations to see exactly what is planned for the property.  This is the phase we are in right 

now. This phase also involves a public hearing at the PC where we would send notices to all 

properties within 300 feet of the project property. He stated we did a legal notice in the 

newspaper and held that public hearing at the PC at their second meeting in July.  At that 

meeting the PC recommended approval of the project. The next part of the preliminary phase 

is for the HTB to review the preliminary plan, which is where we are at tonight. The last phase 

of the PD process is called final phase, and at that point we are pretty much done with reviewing 

the site plans and we will primarily be looking at any recorded instruments, any easements, the 

master deed for the condominium, as well as a PD Agreement. He stated that this is commonly 

referred to as the legal part of the process where we are reviewing the legal instruments. He 

stated that the core of the site plan is all packed into the preliminary phase we are at right now.  

 

Director Langer gave a brief overview of the project history regarding the submission of the 

concept plan to both the PC and the HTB. He referenced some of the comments that came out 

of the conceptual review from the Hartland Deerfield Fire Authority (HDFA), including a 

secondary means of access for an emergency situation. The HDFA also had concerns with how 

close the potential structures would be to each other as the conceptual plan was proposing that 

they were about five feet off of the property line so if one structure is five feet from the property 

line and the neighboring structure is also five feet off of the property line, there was about 10 

feet between the structures. The PC essentially asked that the applicant meet with the HDFA 

to see if these concerns could be worked out.  The applicant met with HDFA and ultimately, 

the applicant decided to work with a neighboring property, which happens to be the Hartland 

Ice Arena, to negotiate an emergency access that would connect with their parking lot. The 

applicant also decided to move the potential residential structures further away from each other, 
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to fifteen feet apart, by moving the structures so they would be seven and a half feet from the 

property lines. Director Langer stated that the applicant also received their wetland delineation, 

which is where someone actually goes out and determines where the wetland boundaries are, 

and they discovered that the wetland was not as big as they originally thought. This freed up 

more space for how they could design their residential development on the project. The project 

somewhat changed from conceptual review to the preliminary review to accommodate those 

items. The plan in front of the Township Board is the preliminary plan. There are 32-single 

family residential structures, located immediately north of the Bella Vita facility which is just 

north of M-59. The project would be accessed by Bella Vita Road which goes out to M-59 and  

there would be a temporary emergency access that would go to the west to the parking lot for 

the Ice Arena.  He stated there would be a gate at this access, so it would not be accessible at 

all times. In the event there was an emergency on either this property or the Ice Arena property 

that is served by Arena Drive that would be blocked off this may allow patrons at the Ice Arena 

to get out of that facility as well, so it has a dual purpose. Director Langer stated that at the 

public hearing there was a resident that stated they were not necessarily opposed to the project, 

but they lived across from Ore Creek and stated that when the Ice Arena project was built, they 

had some concerns as to how that development impacted Ore Creek.  They just wanted to 

ensure that whatever occurs on this property does not negatively impact Ore Creek.  

 

Director Langer then gave a brief overview of some of the specifics of the project consisting 

of 32 units, all of which are designed with a courtyard on the side, so they do not rely on a 

backyard. They are focusing more on their entertainment with a side patio courtyard. The 

courtyards are never facing another unit’s courtyard.  The applicants then gave a brief overview 

of the project stating that these are for sale units, not rentals units. This is an upscale detached 

patio home with price points probably in the $400Ks to $500K range and referenced some of 

the exhibits that provided an overview of the side courtyards. They gave a brief overview of 

the stormwater design which would be designed to State and Livingston County Drain 

Commission (LCDC) standards and there should be no adverse impact on any neighboring 

properties. 

 

Treasurer Horning stated that she really liked the five-foot sidewalks that will make this a 

walkable community and she really likes the courtyard concept where the courtyard is still 

private and not facing a neighbor. Treasurer Horning inquired as to the recognizable benefits 

to the Township. The applicant stated that it is providing housing that is not typically done in 

Townships. This is geared more for older adults as they age and no longer want to take care of 

large lots. Typically, there are few to no children in these communities which would pose no 

additional burden on the school system.  They also stated that this is a less dense project which 

would limit traffic issues in the area and have a limited effect on the water and sewer systems. 

They also cited the additional open space that is a product of having a much less dense project. 

Director Langer stated that the project will not only have sidewalks on both sides of the street, 

but there will be a trail system around the storm water detention system.  Treasurer Horning 

commented that the recognized benefit cited of not burdening the schools is not really a 

recognizable benefit as the schools are always anxious to get additional pupils. Supervisor 

Fountain inquired as to the document regarding the declaration of bylaws creating 

condominium ownership and would like to know if that is just a template that would be used 

for this. The applicant stated that it is a sample that they included to explain how they work, 

and a local attorney will create one for this location for Michigan standard laws. Supervisor 

Fountain also inquired as to where the applicants were headquartered. The applicant stated that 

the main headquarters is in Columbus, Ohio and they build corporately in Columbus, Charlotte, 

Raleigh, Indianapolis, and Atlanta. The company is in 29 total states most of which are 

franchisees. The headquarters in Michigan is in Redford and there would be a satellite office 
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in Hartland. Trustee Germane inquired as to the time frame for the buildout of the project. The 

applicant stated that the interest rates typically do not affect their buyers as much because of 

the age target of the buyer. The applicant stated that 40% of the buyers purchase with cash and 

some have lifestyle mortgages that is unique with people that are 62 and older. A typical 

neighborhood would pace at two to three units per month, so maybe one year to 18 months is 

what would be anticipated for completion. Trustee Germane stated that they have a storm 

management detention basin in the northwest, not too far from the one that serves the Ice Arena, 

and he inquired as whether the soils in that area allow for a lot of percolation back into the 

groundwater or whether there is actually an overflow discharge to it. The applicant stated that 

the new LCDC standards require for them to do a percolation test within the footprint of the 

basin and that factors into the sizing of the basin and the outlet and things like that, so they are 

assuming that they have fairly good soils. It is sandier soils and assuming 1" per hour 

infiltration rate which basically means it does infiltrate naturally and there will be an outlet 

control structure and it will outlet into the creek at a restricted rate to eliminate soil erosion into 

the creek. The applicant further explained county regulations regarding sanitation forebay and 

the regular maintenance of the forebay.   

 

Trustee Germane inquired as to who is going to handle maintenance with the soil erosion basin. 

The applicant stated that there will be an easement dedicated around the basin that will allow 

access to the LCDC to maintain the basin and they will confirm this with the County. Trustee 

German inquired as to the ratio of open space to development space and Director Langer stated 

the development was 9.58 acres and they have 2.4 acres of open space, so around 25%.  Trustee 

Germane inquired as to how close the southern homes would be to the Bella Vita parking lot 

and applicant stated there was the Bella Vita detention basin between the homes and the parking 

lot and that there will be landscape buffering between the homes and Bella Vita. Trustee 

Germane commented that Bella Vita does have nice sidewalks surrounding their building and 

if there was not a large additional expense, he would like to see the sidewalks connected.  

Director Langer stated this was discussed at the PC but it would only go to the end of their 

property and would not connect to Bella Vita sidewalks as their sidewalks do not go to this 

property line. Trustee McMullen stated she thought the first plan had parking spots shown 

between units 20 and 28. The applicant stated that there were never any parking spots shown 

on the plan but, there was discussion on adding some additional parking spaces. The houses 

have an attached garage which provides parking as well as the driveway that can accommodate 

two cars so there was no additional parking planned for visitors. Trustee McMullen inquired if 

parking would be allowed on the streets as she is concerned with additional parking for family 

events. The applicant stated that would be up to DPW or the HDFA if that would be allowed. 

Clerk Ciofu stated that on the south road that goes through the development, in the early plans 

it got shifted a little to line up to the parking lot in the Ice Arena and inquired if that has been 

approved by the Ice Arena or if they are still talking about that. The applicants stated this has 

been coordinated with the Ice Arena and they will allow them to have that access. Trustee 

O'Connell stated that she has the same concern about parking as Trustee McMullen. The 

applicant stated that the road is wide enough for additional parking on the road and for cars to 

still drive though. Director Langer stated that the right-of-way is 66 feet wide which is as wide 

as Clark Road. The HDFA is concerned with parking to be able to get their trucks down the 

road in an emergency situation, and that this issue was discussed with the HDFA.  Discussion 

was held on additional locations for additional parking.  Clerk Ciofu stated that this issue occurs 

in all subdivisions, that when large family gatherings are held people will park on the street.  

He stated that each unit having a two-car garage and a two-car driveway for normal daily use 

is satisfactory in his view.      
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Move to approve Site Plan Application #22-006, the Preliminary Planned Development 

Site Plan for the Courtyards, Hartland Senior Community, as outlined in the staff report 

dated July 25, 2022 
Motion made by Trustee Germane, Seconded by Clerk Ciofu. Roll call vote taken 

Voting Yea:  Supervisor Fountain, Clerk Ciofu, Treasurer Horning, Trustee Germane, 

Trustee McMullen, Trustee O'Connell 

Voting Nay:  None 

Absent:   Trustee Petrucci     Motion passes  6-0-1 

 

c. Site Plan Application #20-011 Villas of Hartland Planned Development (PD) – REVISED 

Preliminary Site Plan dated February 24, 2022 

 

Supervisor Fountain gave a brief overview of the revised site plan dated February 24, 2022 and 

invited the applicants to come forward.  Director Langer stated that this project is also a Planned 

Development (PD).  He again reviewed the PD process of concept plan, preliminary plan, and 

final plan.  He stated the applicant has gone through the concept plan phase and that we are at 

the preliminary plan phase.  Director then gave a brief history of the project stating that when 

this project originally came to the Township in conceptual review there was a planned 

connection to the subdivision immediately to the east which is Walnut Ridge.  The applicant 

moved on to the preliminary phase at the PC and that connection was still shown.  As the public 

hearing for the preliminary phase involves noticing surrounding property owners as well as a 

publishing legal notice in the newspapers, it drew quite a bit of comments from the Walnut 

Ridge residents and as a result the plan was modified to what is presented now. There is no 

longer a connection to Walnut Ridge. Instead, there is a secondary emergency access that will 

connect out to Hacker Road so this development has its primary access off Hacker Road and 

then there is a secondary means of access that would be a gravel type of road that would be 

gated so people could not ordinarily drive down that road. There are also gates at the beginning 

of this subdivision as it is somewhat of a gated community. Those gates would automatically 

open regardless of who drove up, so it is not locked off to only residents and it could be 

manually opened if needed. This project now contains 57 units.  

 

Director Langer stated that when it was at the PC for a second public hearing, due to the 

modification, we re-noticed it and held a new public hearing based on this new plan. There 

were also some comments from some neighboring residents, including some who lived across 

Hacker Road which is actually in an adjoining Township, who had concerns with storm water 

runoff and traffic lights. As part of the review at the PC, in attempting to address those 

comments as best as the PC could, they conditioned their approval upon some additional trees 

being installed either along Hacker Road or in some other location. This plan at the Board 

meeting tonight has been modified from what the PC saw because the applicant just went ahead 

and installed those trees per what the PC approved. Other than that, it is the same exact plan 

that the PC saw. 

 

Wayne Perry on behalf of the applicant Joe Rotundo, stated that this plan has been, as noted, 

through a number of changes over the course of its approval process and those changes have 

improved the plan. This 24.5-acre parcel contains 57 units with private roads and sidewalks. 

The road layout and the unit layout have been revised to minimize the impact to the property, 

maximize the available open space on the land, and minimize the impacts to the community as 

well. Supervisor Fountain inquired as to whether there is any additional planned parking. The 

applicant stated that the road right-of-way is 66 feet wide, so the roads are full width, and the 

curbs are flat curbs. Parking will be available on the roads and the HDFA has no issues with it. 

There will be full 2-car garages with driveways more than adequate to park cars. The applicant 

28



HARTLAND TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

August 03, 2022 – 7:00 PM 

 

 

Hartland Township Page 6 Updated  

stated that starting immediately after the development of San Marino sidewalks have been a 

debate in Hartland Township and that goes back to the early 1990s. The applicant adds that San 

Marino does not have sidewalks and that has never been an issue. This plan does have sidewalks 

on both sides of the street, setback from the road and all the way through the development. 

Supervisor Fountain inquired if there is a specific homeowner this is project is geared towards. 

The applicant stated it will probably be geared towards older people but there will be different 

styles of homes so they will not limit their market. Clerk Ciofu inquired as to the price ranges.  

The applicant stated that it will be between $400K and $500K.  

 

Trustee Germane inquired as whether the wetlands are small enough where they can be filled 

in and worked over them or if are required to remain as is. The applicant stated that most 

wetlands that are there will remain. There is one very shallow wetland on the south end of the 

property that will be eliminated and filled in as it is just a depression in the farm field and does 

not drain anywhere. The rest of them particularly in the wooden areas are to remain. Trustee 

O'Connell stated she had concerns with the gates and if the gate is not to actually have access 

what is the point of the gate. The applicant stated that they did it in Hartland Estates and it 

worked pretty well, and people seem to like it. They stated they also added sidewalks in 

Hartland Estates when they were not required, and they are trying to the same with this project. 

Trustee O'Connell stated she has a concern that the gate will not always work properly, and 

that Hartland is supposed to be friendly so why add gates. Director Langer stated that the first 

time this project came through for a public hearing and it had a connection to Walnut Ridge, 

the PC discussed the gates because they did not want that to preclude traffic from Walnut Ridge 

to be able to get out to Hacker Road. Now that the connection to Walnut Ridge has been 

eliminated and it is a single access site, the PC did not get into a discussion on gates.  

 

Trustee McMullen stated that she is just concerned with the density. Director Langer stated that 

the way you calculate density in PD is that the first step is to look at the Future Land Use Map 

(FLUM) to see how this property is designated in the FLUM, and what the density is on the 

FLUM. This one is capped at 2 units an acre so that is the maximum density that is allowed. 

With a PD there is an allowance for a bonus density of up to 40% beyond the normal cap. 

Under the regular FLUM designation they would be permitted 49 units. They are at 57 units, 

so they are 8 units over the cap. If they applied for the full 40% bonus density they could get 

to a maximum 69 units.  Supervisor Fountain inquired as to the amount of land from this 

development to M-59 and the applicant responded that it may be around 20 acres and that there 

is a wetland along M-59 but the north half is mostly high ground. Trustee McMullen would 

also like to add to Trustee O'Connell's comment about the gates and feels that the gates make 

the community inclusive where we want Hartland to be friendly and include the rest of the 

community. She stated people like to drive around and get ideas for their own homes and when 

some people see the gates it is not viewed as friendly to the rest of the community. 

 

Move to approve Site Plan Application #20-011, the Preliminary Planned Development 

Site Plan for the Villas of Hartland, as outlined in the staff report dated June 7, 2022. 

Motion made by Clerk Ciofu, Seconded by Treasurer Horning. Roll call vote taken 

Voting Yea:  Supervisor Fountain, Clerk Ciofu, Treasurer Horning, Trustee Germane 

Voting Nay:  Trustee McMullen, Trustee O'Connell 

Absent:   Trustee Petrucci     Motion passed 4-2-1 
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8. Board Reports 

 
Trustee Germane - No report. 

Trustee O'Connell - Thanked the Clerk and his team for an absolutely wonderful election yesterday. It 

went off without a hitch. The people were very helpful, and she learned so much. The workers were 

great. Kudos again to our election department. 

Trustee McMullen - No report. 

Clerk Ciofu - The election did go very well. We did have some minor issues at the end of the night with 

the County, but it worked out well. The turnout for Hartland was about 31% and that was just a slight 

bit below the countywide average of 32%. We had close to 4000 voters and 51% of them were absentee 

voters and 49% voted at the precincts. The Cromaine Millage renewal passed at a 60% to 40% rate. He 

thanked his staff, Deputy Clerk Karen Vermillion and the Election Assistants Casey Louis and Heather 

Cosgrove for all of their hard work making this election process successful. He also thanked the election 

Chairpersons, the Election Inspectors, and the Hartland voters. He stated the voters were all pleasant at 

the precincts, and there were no voter issues, and it ran very smoothly.  

Treasurer Horning - The Farmers Market is in full swing, and we are sold out of booths almost every 

weekend. The fresh sweet corn is in and if you want it come early. We open at 9:00 a.m. and the sweet 

corn is usually gone by 10-10:30 a.m. 

Supervisor Fountain - No report. 

 

[BRIEF RECESS]  

 
9. Information / Discussion 

 
a) Manager's Report 

 

Manager West stated that we have a vacancy on the Planning Commission, and we have posted the 

position and will be taking applications through next Friday.  He also stated we have been working the 

Communications Department and the Partners-In-Progress on the State of the Community Address. We 

are exploring resuming this event at the Emagine Theater.  It will probably be a more condensed version 

by pre-filming all of the Partners-In-Progress groups those videos will be presented live along with the 

presentation of the Volunteer of the Year.  He stated this is still in the preliminary stages so more will 

come on this matter.  Manager West gave a brief update on the Vincent Drive residents that attended 

the last meeting and that he has reached out to them to set up a meeting prior to sending out a letter to 

the residents on Vincent Drive but have not received a response as of this time.  Letters will go out 

tomorrow.  Manager West reached out to Bob Schroeder of Mayberry Homes with a friendly reminder 

regarding the second payment due in forty-five days, and Mr. Schroeder stated he was aware of the 

payment and due date and that he would also like to discuss paying it off early. He stated that there 

have been changes and projections for the future in the Assessing field and Manger West will have 

Assessor Jim Heaslip at a future Board work session to discuss these issues.  At the next meeting there 

will be a Special Meeting prior to the regular Board Meeting to discuss the Fiscal Year Audit.  This 

will also be covered in the regular Board meeting.  Trustee Germane inquired as to the feedback we 

have received on the police protection public announcements.  Manager West stated feedback was 

initially somewhat concerned with the cost implications, but subsequent feedback from other Township 

residents were positive and were thanking the Township for this program.  He did state that the police 

statistics and a copy of the budget, which included police protection, is available at the front counter in 

the Township Hall.  The two dedicated police officers have been in the area already and Manager West 

will be doing a drive along with the Deputies tomorrow to highlight the Township.  Trustee Germane 

recommended having a future work session to discuss reinstating the Police Ordinance so the Township 
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could recoup some revenues and possibly share these with the schools, and he noticed an increase in 

the speed of vehicles at the Bullard and Dunham Rd. intersection. 

 

b) ARPA Funding Update 

 

Manager West presented the current and future status of the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), 

funding, including projects completed, planned, and future opportunities.  Items discussed were the 

water main extension, the HDFA Lexipol public and internal training software, the Spranger and 

Winegarner Fields security cameras, Heritage Park irrigation repairs contribution, the crosswalks posts 

replacement at Ore Creeks, and the Ore Creek bridge painting. Other funding opportunities discussed 

were Livingston Land Conservancy trails, updated Board Room audience chairs, and a grant program 

for our non-profit civic organizations.  Manager West stated we would not be allowed to provide funds 

to these organizations directly, but we could pay for specific projects presented by these organizations.  

Discussion was held on the requirements of the grant initiatives and project possibilities. Trustee 

Germane inquired as to whether the concrete apron replacement in front of the Fire Department is 

eligible for ARPA funding.  Manager West stated that it would be, but that this item is already included 

in the Capital Improvement Plan and is on hold until we complete and get the results of the Fire Station 

Study.  Manager West stated that the overall goal of our ARPA funding is to spread this across all areas 

of the community.    

 

10. Adjournment 

 

 Move to adjourn the meeting at 8:40 p.m. 

Motion made by Treasurer Horning, Seconded by Clerk Ciofu. 

Voting Yea: Supervisor Fountain, Clerk Ciofu, Treasurer Horning, Trustee Germane, Trustee 

McMullen, Trustee O'Connell 

Voting Nay:  None 

Absent:   Trustee Petrucci 
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Hartland Township Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memorandum 
 
 
Submitted By: Susan Dryden-Hogan, Finance Director  

Subject: Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Audit Presentation 

Date: August 9, 2022 

 

Recommended Action 

Move to accept the Audit Report from Pfeffer, Hanniford & Palka, CPAs for the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 

 

 

 

 

Discussion 

Attached is the Fiscal Year 2022 audit report, including the audit presentation and management letter, 

prepared by PHP, CPAs.  John Pfeffer will be reviewing the results of the audit and financial position of 

the Township during the meeting. 

 

 

 

 

Financial Impact 

Is a Budget Amendment Required? ☐Yes ☒No 

 

 

 

 

 

Attachments 

Audit Presentation 

Management Letter 

Audited Financial Statements 
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Hartland Township

Audit Presentation

March 31, 2022

PHP
PFEFFER, HANNIFORD & PALKA

Certified Public Accountants

BRIGHTON, MICHIGAN
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Hartland Township
General Fund Revenues – Pre GASB 54

For The Year Ended March 31, 2022

Property 

Taxes

$ 598,792

State Revenues

$ 1,637,762

Utility 

Administration

$ 169,995

Admin. 

Fees

$ 225,801

Miscellaneous

$ 188,139

Cable Fees

$ 229,771

Total Revenues $ 3,136,368

Rental Income 

$ 56,108
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Hartland Township
General Fund Expenditures – Pre GASB 54

For The Year Ended March 31, 2022

Total Expenditures = $ 2,033,354
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Hartland Township
General Fund - Fund Balance – Pre GASB 54

March 31, 2003-2022
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August 16, 2022 

 
 
    To the Board of Trustees 

Hartland Township 
2655 Clark Road 
Hartland, MI 48353 
 
Dear Honorable Board of Trustees: 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business 
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Hartland Township as 
of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, we considered the Hartland Township’s internal control over financial reporting 
(internal control) as a basis for designing and auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances 
for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Township’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the Township’s internal control.  
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  

 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses.  Given those 
limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be 
material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.  
 
 

CONCLUSION 
 
Thank you for your assistance and hospitality toward our firm while conducting the audit of Hartland 
Township. 
 
If you should have any questions, comments or concerns please do not hesitate to call us. 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control 
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or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governmental 
Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this 
communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Trustees and management of       
Hartland Township and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than the specified      
parties. 
 

 
PFEFFER, HANNIFORD & PALKA 
Certified Public Accountants 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

 
August 16, 2022 
 
To the Board of Trustees 
Hartland Township 
2655 Clark Road 
Hartland, Michigan  48353 
 
  
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements  
 
Opinions  
 
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Hartland Township, Michigan, as of and for the year ended March 
31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Township's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Hartland Township, Michigan, as of 
March 31, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 
Basis for Opinions  
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
(GAAS).  Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit 
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Township and to meet our 
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that 
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.  
 
Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements  
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, management is 
required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt 
about the Township's ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements  
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. 
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are 
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the 
judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.  
 
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 
 

• exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.  

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include 
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.  

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the Township’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.  

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.  

• conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise 
substantial doubt about the Township's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of 
time.  

 
We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified 
during the audit.  
 
Required Supplementary Information  
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s discussion and 
analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 8-13 and 51-53 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of 
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about 
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses 
to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial 
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures 
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
 
Supplementary Information 
  
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
Township's basic financial statements. The accompanying supplementary information such as the combining and 
individual fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In 
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our opinion, the combining and individual fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.  
 
 
 

 
PFEFFER, HANNIFORD & PALKA 
Certified Public Accountants 
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Management Discussion and Analysis 
March 31, 2022 

 
 

Within this section of Hartland Township’s annual financial report, the Township’s management is providing a 
narrative discussion and analysis of the financial activities of the Township for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2022.  
This narrative discusses and analyzes the activity within the context of the accompanying financial statements and 
disclosures following this section.  The discussion focuses on the Township’s primary government and, unless 
otherwise noted, component units reported separately from the primary government are not included. 
 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
Management’s Discussion and Analysis introduces the Township’s basic financial statements.  The basic financial 
statements include government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and notes to the financial 
statements.  The Township also includes in this report additional information to supplement the basic financial 
statements. 
 
Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The Township’s annual reports include two government-wide financial statements.  These statements provide both 
long-term and short-term information about the Township’s overall status.  Financial reporting at this level uses a 
perspective similar to that found in the private sector with its basis in full accrual accounting and elimination or 
reclassification of internal activities. 
 
The first of these government-wide statements is the Statement of Net Position.  This is the Township-wide statement 
of position presenting information that includes all the Township’s assets and liabilities, with the difference reported 
as net position.  Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the 
financial position of the Township as a whole is improving or deteriorating.  Evaluation of the overall health of the 
Township may extend to various non-financial factors as well. 
 
The second government-wide statement is the Statement of Activities which reports how the Township’s net position 
changed during the current fiscal year.  The design of this statement is to show the financial reliance of the Township’s 
distinct activities or functions on the revenues generated by the Township. 
 
Both government-wide financial statements distinguish governmental activities of the Township that are principally 
supported by taxes and revenue sharing, and from the business-type activities that are intended to recover all or a 
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges.  Governmental activities include such activities as 
general government, public safety, and planning and zoning departments.  Business-type activities include water and 
sewer system operations.  Fiduciary activities such as tax collection are not included in the government-wide 
statements since these assets are not available to fund Township programs. 
 
The Township’s financial reporting includes all the funds of the Township (primary government) and, additionally, 
organizations for which the Township is accountable (component units). 
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Fund Financial Statements 
 
A fund is an accountability unit used to maintain control over resources segregated for specific activities or objectives.  
The Township uses funds to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related laws and regulations.  Within 
the basic financial statements, fund financial statements focus on the Township’s most significant funds rather than 
the Township as a whole.  Major funds are separately reported while all others are combined into a single, aggregated 
presentation.  Individual fund data for non-major funds is provided in the combining statements later in this report. 
 
The Township has three kinds of funds: 
 
Governmental funds are reported in the financial statements and encompass essentially the same functions as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements except with a different focus on the financial 
activity.  These statements report short-term fiscal accountability focusing on the use of available resources and 
balances of these resources available at the end of the year.  They are useful in evaluating annual financing 
requirements of governmental programs and the commitment of spendable resources for the near-term.  Since the 
focus of the government-wide financial statements includes a long-term view, a reconciliation of these fund balances 
has been completed to detail its relation to net position. 
 
Proprietary funds are reported in the fund financial statements and are used to account for operations (a) that are 
financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises - where the intent of the governing body is 
that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services to the public on a continuing basis be 
financed or recovered primarily through user charges; or (b) where the governing body has decided that periodic 
determination of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, 
public policy, management control, accountability or other purposes. 
 
Fiduciary funds are reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements but are excluded from the government-wide 
statements.  Fiduciary fund financial statements report resources that are not available to fund Township activities.   
 
Notes to the financial statements 
 
The accompanying notes to the financial statements provide information essential to a full understanding of both the 
government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
Other information 
 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required 
supplementary information.  Other supplementary information includes detail by fund for receivables, payables, 
transfers, and payments within the reporting entity.  
 
Major funds are reported in the basic financial statements as discussed.  Combining and statements for individual fund 
activity are presented in a subsequent section of this report. 
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The Township as a Whole - Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 
The Township’s net position at the end of the fiscal year was $42,944,513.  This is a $4,178,454 increase over last year’s net position of $38,766,059.    
 
The following tables provide a summary of the Township’s financial activities and changes in net position: 
 

Summary of Net Position 
 

3/31/2022 3/31/2021 3/31/2022 3/31/2021 3/31/2022 3/31/2021

ASSETS

Current and other assets 14,034,927$  12,286,035$  18,353,570$  17,434,878$  32,388,497$  29,720,913$  

Capital assets 8,841,407 8,785,546 20,761,558 21,393,001 29,602,965    30,178,547    

Total assets 22,876,334 21,071,581 39,115,128 38,827,879 61,991,462 59,899,460

LIABILITIES

Other liabilities 1,212,842 120,526 1,533,478 1,266,320 2,746,320      1,386,846      

Long-term liabilities 4,155,556 5,332,882 12,145,073 14,413,673 16,300,629    19,746,555    

Total liabilities 5,368,398 5,453,408 13,678,551 15,679,993 19,046,949 21,133,401

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 8,841,407 8,785,546 7,995,070 7,938,001 16,836,477    16,723,547    

Restricted 3,380,767 3,586,450  3,380,767      3,586,450      

Unrestricted 5,285,762 3,246,177 17,441,507 15,209,885 22,727,269    18,456,062    

Total net position 17,507,936$  15,618,173$  25,436,577$  23,147,886$  42,944,513$  38,766,059$  

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
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Summary of Changes in Activities 
 

3/31/2022 3/31/2021 3/31/2022 3/31/2021 3/31/2022 3/31/2021

REVENUES

Program revenues

Charges for services 490,387$        480,658$        3,655,436$    3,439,974$    4,145,823$    3,920,632$    

Capital contributions  2,837,822 53,502 2,837,822 53,502

General revenues

State revenues 1,644,328 1,358,146 1,644,328 1,358,146

Property taxes 3,303,888 2,996,333 3,303,888 2,996,333

Interest and rent 181,620 196,841 429,430 212,532 611,050 409,373

Other 477,079 605,729 36,235 52,318 513,314 658,047

Total revenues 6,097,302 5,637,707 6,958,923 3,758,326 13,056,225 9,396,033

EXPENSES

General government 1,609,921 1,849,959 1,609,921 1,849,959

Public safety 1,342,487 1,295,952 1,342,487 1,295,952

Parks and recreation 398,911 279,048 398,911 279,048

Public works 675,422 562,980 675,422 562,980

Community development 44,000 42,000 44,000 42,000

Cemetery 26,630 26,630

Interest on governmental long-term debt 136,798 155,096 136,798 155,096

Water system 722,579 816,183 722,579 816,183

Sewer system 3,947,653 3,058,432 3,947,653 3,058,432

Total expenses 4,207,539 4,211,665 4,670,232 3,874,615 8,877,771 8,086,280

Change in net position 1,889,763 1,426,042 2,288,691 (116,289) 4,178,454 1,309,753

Beginning net position 15,618,173 14,192,131 23,147,886 23,264,175 38,766,059 37,456,306

Ending net position 17,507,936$  15,618,173$  25,436,577$  23,147,886$  42,944,513$  38,766,059$  

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Totals
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Financial Analysis of the Township’s Funds 
 
The Township has four major governmental funds for the year ended March 31, 2022.  These funds are the General 
Fund, Municipal Street Fund, Fire Operating Fund, and M-59/Hartland Road Debt Service Fund. 
 

• The General Fund increased by $654,285.  Property tax revenues and State Shared Revenue remained strong 

and were not adversely affected by the pandemic. 

• The Municipal Street Fund increased by $247,364.  This fund is supported by a 10-year millage, which expires 

in 2024.  All major construction projects were completed within the first three years.  The remaining seven 

years included additional repairs and maintenance.  During the pandemic, larger repairs and maintenance 

projects were delayed into 2023 and 2024.  Work during 2022 was limited to gravel road improvements. 

• The Fire Operating fund increased $331,494.  A 5-year millage of 2.06, expiring in 2025, was approved by the 

voters in November 2020.   

• The M-59/Hartland Road Debt Service Fund increased by $21,326, as expected.    A 2019 bond refunding 

resulted in interest savings to the assessed parcels and is accounted for in the budget. 

The Township has two major business-type funds for the year ended March 31, 2022.  These funds are the Water 
System Fund and the Sewage Disposal System Fund. 
 

• The Water System Fund’s net position increased by $2,268,248.  Water operations continues to perform well 

due to planned annual rate increases, as well as residential water usage was higher due to remote work.   

Water Repair and Replacement received over $2,000,000 in connection fees due to the planned water system 

expansion down to the east end of the Township.  The original Water System Bonds 2001 were paid off and 

excess surplus funds of $255,124 were refunded to property owners.  See Note 14 for further discussion.   

• The Sewage Disposal System Fund increased its net position by $20,443, which was better than expected in 
the amended budget.  Connection revenues were slightly higher than expected as well as lower-than-expected 
expenses.  Commercial sewer usage was down due to pandemic closures.  Future special assessment revenues 
were reduced due to the Hartland Glen Development settlement; however, new construction connection 
revenues are expected to cover the loss.  In addition, previous deferred special assessments are now due and 
payable over the next three years, including $500,000 of capitalized interest.  See Note 12 for further 
discussion of the Hartland Glen Settlement. 
 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The General Fund’s budget was adopted prior to the start of the fiscal year ended March 31, 2022.  The overall funds 
were in compliance with the Board approved budget resolution. The budget was amended during the year to account 
for various projected changes due to Board decisions and economic reality.   
 
The Township received over $797,000 in funds under the State and Local Fiscal Recovery Program (“SLFRP”) in relation 
to the American Rescue Plan Act (“ARPA”), which was passed to help communities recover from negative impacts of 
the Covid-19 pandemic. No ARPA funds were spent or obligated during fiscal year ended March 31, 2022.  
 
Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
The Township acquired $520,716 of capital assets during the year.  The Township completed the sidewalk project 
called the M-59 Safety Path, incurring costs of $317,970.  The Township also completed two projects in Settlers Park 
– a walking path and the Duhnam Road crosswalk, for $195,975.  The Township-owned Fire Station obtained a new 
water heater at a cost of $6,771.     
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The Township disposed of one fully depreciated asset during the year, which cost a total of $11,963 when it was 
originally purchased.   
 
The Township made bond principal payments of $870,000 during the fiscal year, bringing the total governmental debt 
balance to $4,050,000 for the year end March 31, 2021.  The Township did not issue any new debt during the fiscal 
year.   
 

Business-Type Funds 
 
The Township has two business-type funds – Water System Fund and Sewage Disposal Sstem Fund.  These funds did 
not acquire any new assets in the current year.   
 
Land of $26,842 was disposed of during the fiscal year, as it was deed back to Hartland Glen Development in 
connection with the settlement.  See Note 12 for further discussion of the settlement.   
 
Costs associated with the design and engineering of the Water System’s east expansion account for the majority of 
the Construction in Progress, totally almost $281,000 as of March 31, 2022.  This construction will be complete during 
2022.  
 
On September 1, 2021, the Township issued the Sanitary Sewer Series 2021 Refunding bonds in the amount of 
$4,775,000.  The bond matures on March 31, 2034, and bears interest at 3.675%.  The Township paid off the Sanitary 
Sewer Series 2011 Refunding bonds in the amount of $5,610,000.  Series principal paid on the remaining outstanding 
bonds totaled $1,433,600, with a total of $12,145,073 of principal outstanding for the year ended March 31, 2022. 
 

Economic Conditions and Future Activities 
 
New construction on commercial and residential homes continues at a moderate pace, helping to stabilize the 
Township’s property tax revenues back to pre-recession levels.  Outstanding debt related to connecting to the 
Genesee County’s sewage treatment system exceeds the special assessments to repay the bonds, however, the 
Township continues to cover this shortfall with connection fees and annual planned sewer rate increases.  A long-term 
financial plan is updated annually to ensure that sewer department requirements will be met. 
 
The COVID-19 pandemic impacted many sectors of the economy, with a decline of growth and an increase in the 
unemployment rate.  Hartland Township weathered this storm in 2021/2022 by postponing several capital projects, 
limiting temporary layoffs to part-time field employees.  All budgeted positions are filled with regular in-office work 
schedules and budgeted projects are moving forward into the new fiscal year.   
 
While the duration and long-term impact of COVID-19 remains unclear, the Township has taken successful measures 
to continue operations with few interruptions. 
 

Contacting the Township’s Financial Management 
 
This report is designed to provide a general overview of the Township’s financial position and comply with finance-
related regulations.  If you have any further questions about this report or to request additional information, please 
contact Hartland Township at 2655 Clark Road, Hartland, Michigan 48353.  Find us on the web at 
www.hartlandtwp.com. 
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
MARCH 31, 2022 

 

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Current assets

Cash and investments 9,782,851$        10,911,991$      20,694,842$      

Cash and investments - restricted 2,337,285 2,337,285          

Receivables
Taxes 102,876 102,876              

State shared revenues 305,141 305,141              

Special assessments 3,056,034 3,910,077 6,966,111          

Connection fees 226,224 226,224              

Accounts 82,322 949,601 1,031,923          

Loan - Hartland Deerfield Fire Authority 650,000 650,000              

Interest 368 2,538 2,906                  

Prepaid items 9,227 15,378 24,605                

Intergovernmental (476) 476                             

Bond discount - net of amortization 46,584 46,584                

Non-current assets
Capital assets

Non-depreciable 2,482,407 581,870 3,064,277          

Depreciable -  net of accumulated depreciation 6,359,000 20,179,688 26,538,688        

Total assets 22,876,334 39,115,128 61,991,462

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable 143,394 363,379 506,773              

Accrued wages/taxes 64,226 64,226                

Accrued interest payable 88,137 88,137                

Unearned revenue 954,828 954,828              

Compliance reserve 50,394 50,394                

Long-term liabilities
   Bond premium - net of amortization 105,556 1,081,962 1,187,518          

Other due within one year 890,000 1,178,600 2,068,600          

Other due in more than one year 3,160,000 10,966,473 14,126,473        

Total liabilities 5,368,398 13,678,551 19,046,949

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 8,841,407 7,995,070 16,836,477        

Restricted 3,380,767 3,380,767          

Unrestricted 5,285,762 17,441,507 22,727,269        

Total net position 17,507,936$      25,436,577$      42,944,513$      

Primary Government
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

 

Charges for Capital Governmental Business-type

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities Total

Governmental activities:

General  government (1,609,921)$       490,387$           $                             (1,119,534)$       $                        (1,119,534)$       

Parks  and recreation (398,911) (398,911)            (398,911)            

Pol ice protection (16,837) (16,837)              (16,837)              

Fi re protection (1,325,650) (1,325,650)         (1,325,650)         

Publ ic works (675,422) (675,422)            (675,422)            

Community development (44,000) (44,000)              (44,000)              

Interest on long-term debt (136,798) (136,798)            (136,798)            

Total governmental activities (4,207,539) 490,387 (3,717,152)         (3,717,152)         

Business-type activities:

Water system (722,579) 693,605 2,514,341 2,485,367 2,485,367

Sewer system (3,947,653) 2,961,831 323,481 (662,341) (662,341)

Total business-type activities (4,670,232) 3,655,436 2,837,822 1,823,026 1,823,026

Total (8,877,771)$       4,145,823$        2,837,822$             (3,717,152) 1,823,026 (1,894,126)

3,303,888 3,303,888

1,644,328 1,644,328

Licenses  and permits 359,536 359,536

181,620 429,430 611,050

Other income 117,543 36,235 153,778

5,606,915 465,665 6,072,580

1,889,763 2,288,691 4,178,454

15,618,173 23,147,886 38,766,059

17,507,936$      25,436,577$      42,944,513$      

Property taxes

Net (Expenses) Revenue 

Program Revenues and Changes in Net Assets

General revenues and transfers

        Changes in net position

        Net position, April 1, 2021

        Net position, March 31, 2022

State shared revenues

Interest and rents

Total general revenues 
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

M-59/Hartland Other

Municipal Fire Road Nonmajor

General Fund Street Operating Debt Service Funds Total

ASSETS

Cash and investments 4,111,508$        2,203,971$        1,658,278$        439,987$             1,369,107$        9,782,851$        

Receivables

  Taxes 23,226                   32,802                   46,848                                                                             102,876                

  State shared revenues 305,141                                                                                                                                    305,141                

  Special assessments                                                                                        2,559,007           497,027                3,056,034           

  Accounts 58,925                                                                                                          22,827                   81,752                   

  Loan -  Hartland Deerfield Fire Authority 650,000                650,000                

  Interest 368                                                                                                                                              368                          

Due from other funds 570                                                       185                                                                                    755                          

Prepaid expenditures 9,227                                                                                                                                          9,227                      

Total assets 5,158,965$        2,236,773$        1,705,311$        2,998,994$        1,888,961$        13,989,004$     

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 70,550$                $                          1,424$                   500$                       5,712$                   78,186$                

Accrued wages and absences 64,226                                                                                                                                       64,226                   

Compliance reserves 50,394                                                                                                                                       50,394                   

Unearned revenue 157,721 797,107                954,828                

Due to others 65,208                   65,208                   

Due to other funds 661                                                                                                                                              661                          

Total liabilities 408,760                                             1,424                      500                          802,819                1,213,503           

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue                                                                                        2,539,438           496,521                3,035,959           

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable - prepaid items 9,227                                                                                                                                          9,227                      

Restricted

Roads 812,671                812,671                

Public safety 1,703,887           87,222                   1,791,109           

Debt service 459,056                317,931                776,987                

ARPA 163                          163                          

Committed 

Capital improvement 1,317,561                                        1,317,561           

Cable 169,963                169,963                

Assigned for future deficit 1,424,102                                        14,342                   1,438,444           

Unassigned 3,423,417           3,423,417           

Total fund balance 4,750,205           2,236,773           1,703,887           459,056                589,621                9,739,542           

Total liabilities and  deferred

inflow of resources and liabilities 5,158,965$        2,236,773$        1,705,311$        2,998,994$        1,888,961$        13,989,004$     
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF  
 GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Total fund balance per balance sheet 9,739,542$      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement

of Net Position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 

    resources and therefore, are not reported in the funds.  

Historical cost 13,637,449$    

Depreciation (4,796,042)

Capital assets net of depreciation 8,841,407

Some liabilities are not due and payable in the current period

and therefore are not reported in the funds.  These include:

Bonds payable (4,050,000)

Assessments not collected are reported as unavailable revenue in 

the fund statements, and are reported as income as levied in the

Statement of Activities. 3,035,959

Unamortized bond discount and premiums are not 

recognized in the fund statements. (58,972)

Net position of governmental activities 17,507,936$    
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

M-59/Hartland Other 

Municipal Fire Road Nonmajor

General Street Operating Debt Service Funds Total

REVENUES

Taxes 598,792$                  1,114,366$             1,590,730$             $                               $                               3,303,888$             

Special assessments - principal                                                                     230,858                     102,548                     333,406                     

Special assessments - interest                                                                     96,412                        23,987 120,399                     

State revenues 1,637,762                2,955                           3,611                                                                                               1,644,328                

Licenses and permits 254,517                     105,019 359,536                     

Interest and rents 59,047                        1,139                           423                               166                               446 61,221                        

Charges for services 490,387                                                       490,387                     

Miscellaneous 117,365 7                                     171                               117,543                     

Total revenues 3,157,870                1,118,467                1,594,935                327,436                     232,000                     6,430,708                
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

M-59/Hartland Other 

Municipal Fire Road Nonmajor

General Street Operating Debt Service Funds Total

EXPENDITURES

  Current:

General government 1,502,612                1,502,612                

Parks and recreation 136,327                     136,327                     

Capital improvement 2,893                           2,893                           

Police protection/public safety 16,837                                                          16,837                        

Fire protection 1,256,670                1,256,670                

Public works 333,578 280,403                     61,441 675,422                     

Community development 44,000                        44,000                        

  Capital outlay:

General government 513,945                                                       513,945                     

Fire protection 6,771                           6,771                           

  Debt service:

Principal 540,000                     240,000                     90,000                        870,000                     

Interest and fees 50,700                        66,110                        19,988                        136,798                     

Total expenditures 2,550,192                871,103                     1,263,441                306,110                     171,429                     5,162,275                

Excess of revenues over (under) 

expenditures 607,678                     247,364                     331,494                     21,326                        60,571                        1,268,433                

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 46,607                                   46,607                        

Transfers (out)                                   (46,607)                      (46,607)                      

Total other financing sources (uses) 46,607                                                                                                                              (46,607)                                                        

Net changes in fund balances 654,285                     247,364                     331,494                     21,326                        13,964                        1,268,433                

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2021 4,095,920                1,989,409                1,372,393                437,730                     575,657                     8,471,109                

FUND BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2022 4,750,205$             2,236,773$             1,703,887$             459,056$                  589,621$                  9,739,542$             
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

RECONCILIATION OF STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Net change in fund balance - governmental funds 1,268,433$       

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement

  of Activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures. 

However, in the Statement of Activities the cost of those

assets are allocated over their useful lives as depreciation

expense.  The amount by which depreciation exceeded

      capital outlay is as follows:

Capital outlay 520,716$          

Depreciation expense (464,855)           

Total 55,861

Issuance of new debt and the repayment of long-term debt

are recorded as revenues and expenditures in the 

governmental funds, but change the outstanding long-term

liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

 Contracts/bonds payable 870,000

Bond discounts and bond premiums are amortized over

the life of the bonds on the Statement of Activities.

Current year amortization 28,874

Assessment not collected are reported as deferred revenue in the

fund statements, and are reported as income

levied in the Statement of Activities.

 
Principal collected during the year (333,405)

Change in net position of governmental activities 1,889,763$       

 

62



 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
 

24 

HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

MARCH 31, 2022 
  

Sewage

Water    Disposal   

System System Eliminations Total

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 4,847,922$           4,490,928$           $                         9,338,850$           

Investments 1,573,141              1,573,141              

Special assessment receivable                            74,766                   74,766                   

Accounts receivable - billing 181,993                 767,608                 949,601                 

Prepaid 2,328                     13,050                   15,378                   

Interest receivable                            2,538                     2,538                     

Due from other funds 476                         9,336                     (9,336)                    476                         

Total current assets 5,032,719              6,931,367              (9,336)                    11,954,750           

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents                            2,337,285                                         2,337,285              

Special assessments receivable                            3,835,311                                         3,835,311              

Connection fees receivable 226,224                                            226,224                 

Total restricted assets                            6,398,820                                         6,398,820              

CAPITAL ASSETS

Land 300,000                                                                       300,000                 

Construction in progress 281,870                 281,870                 

Utility systems, net 4,863,780              15,315,908                                      20,179,688           

Net capital assets 5,445,650              15,315,908                                      20,761,558           

Total assets 10,478,369           28,646,095           (9,336)                    39,115,128           

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 63,394                   290,861                                            354,255                 

Accrued expenditures 9,124                     9,124                     

Accrued interest payable                            88,137                                              88,137                   

Bonds and contracts - current portion                            1,178,600                                         1,178,600              

Due to other funds 9,336                                                (9,336)                                               

Total current liabilities 81,854                   1,557,598              (9,336)                    1,630,116              

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Bonds and contracts payable long term portion                            10,966,473                                      10,966,473           

Bond premiums, net of amortization                            1,081,962              1,081,962              

Total long-term liabilties                            12,048,435                                      12,048,435           

Total liabilities 81,854                   13,606,033           (9,336)                    13,678,551           

NET POSITION

  Invested in capital assets, net of                            

related debt 5,445,650              2,549,420              7,995,070              

  Unrestricted 4,950,865              12,490,642                                      17,441,507           

Total net position 10,396,515$         15,040,062$         $                             25,436,577$         

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Sewage Disposal

Water System System Total

OPERATING REVENUES

User charges 693,605$          2,961,831$      3,655,436$      

OPERATING EXPENSES 721,704            2,665,980         3,387,684         

Operating (loss) (28,099)             295,851            267,752            

NON-OPERATING REVENUES AND (EXPENSES)

Interest income - cash and cash equivalents (252,899)           682,329            429,430            

Other income (expense) 35,780               455                     36,235               

County chargeback for special assessments (63,077)             (63,077)             

Settlement costs (406,842)           (406,842)           

Special assessment write off (342,082)           (342,082)           

Interest expense and bond fees (375)                   (469,672)           (470,047)           

Bond issuance costs (500)                   (500)                   

Total non-operating revenues and (expenses) (217,994)           (598,889)           (816,883)           

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Connection fees, net of refund 2,514,341         254,989            2,769,330         

Surcharge fees 68,492               68,492               

Total capital contributions 2,514,341         323,481            2,837,822         

Changes in net position 2,268,248         20,443               2,288,691         

NET POSITION AT APRIL 1, 2021 8,128,267         15,019,619      23,147,886      

NET POSITION AT MARCH 31, 2022 10,396,515$    15,040,062$    25,436,577$    

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Water Sewage

System Disposal System Total

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers 655,903$           2,933,962$        3,589,865$        

Payments  to other suppl iers  for goods  or services (499,568)            (2,178,079)         (2,677,647)         

Payments  made to employees (124,832)            (124,832)            

Net cash (used) provided by operating activities 31,503 755,883 787,386

CASH FLOW FROM (USED IN) CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principa l  and interest pa id on capita l  debt (227,250) (1,663,077) (1,890,327)

Col lections  of specia l  assessment (principa l  and interest) (217,897) 974,054 756,157

Connection fees 2,514,341 179,581 2,693,922

Acquis i tion of fixed assets (66,960) (66,960)

County chargeback for specia l  assessment (63,077) (63,077)

Settlements  costs (380,000) (380,000)

Other revenue 35,280 4,187 39,467

Net cash from capital and

    related financing activities 2,037,514 (948,332) 1,089,182

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net proceeds  from sa le/purchase of investments 375,553 258,637 634,190

Interest received on cash and cash equiva lents 1,540 7,145 8,685

Net cash (used) provided by investing activities 377,093 265,782 642,875

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,446,110 73,333 2,519,443

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT APRIL 1, 2021 2,401,812 6,754,880 9,156,692

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT MARCH 31, 2022 4,847,922$        6,828,213$        11,676,135$      

ADJUSTMENTS TO OPERATING GAIN (LOSS) TO NET CASH 

  PROVIDED (USED BY) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating ga in (loss ) (28,099)$            295,851$           267,752$           

Adjustments  to reconci le operating income to net cash

  provided (used by) operating activi ties :

Depreciation 234,891 436,670 671,561

Specia l  Assessment wri te off 342,082 342,082

Land returned in settlement 26,842 26,842

Change is  assets  and l iabi l i ties

(Increase) decrease in accounts  receivable (37,702) (27,869) (65,571)

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expense (2,328) 1,917 (411)

(Increase) decrease due from other funds 14,583 9,123 23,706

Increase (decrease) accounts  payable (153,879) (346,383) (500,262)

Increase (decrease) due to other funds 6,290 8,674 14,964

Increase (decrease) due to others 8,976 8,976

Increase (decrease) in accrued expenditures (2,253) (2,253)

     Total adjustments 59,602 460,032 519,634

     Net cash provided by operating activities 31,503$             755,883$           787,386$           

ENTERPRISE FUNDS
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
MARCH 31, 2022 

 

Current Tax Trust and

Collection Agency Totals

ASSET

Cash 570$                  22,304$            22,874$            

LIABILITIES

Due to other funds 570$                  $                         570$                  

Due to others 22,304 22,304

Total liabilities 570$                  22,304$            22,874$            
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Current Tax

Collection

ADDITIONS

Tax collections for others 26,940,518$ 

DEDUCTIONS

Payments of tax to others 26,940,518$ 

Net increase (decrease) in fiduciary net position $                   

Net position, April 1, 2021

Net position, March 31, 2022 $                   

 
 
 
Note  that the Trust & Agency Fund had no additions or deductions during the year.
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The accounting and reporting policies of the Township relating to the funds and account groups included in the 
accompanying combined financial statements conform to generally accepted accounting principles applicable to state 
and local governments.  The more significant accounting policies of the Township are described below. 
 

A.  BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 

In accordance with GASB standards, the basic financial statements include both government-wide and fund financial 
statements. 
 

The government-wide financial statements (Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities) report on the 
Township as a whole, excluding fiduciary activities.  Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and 
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on 
fees and charges for support.  All activities, both governmental and business-type, are reported in the government-wide 
financial statements using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, which 
includes long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations.  The government-wide financial 
statements focus more on the sustainability of the Township as an entity and the change in aggregate financial position 
resulting from the activities of the fiscal period. 
 

Generally, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from the government-wide financial statements.  Net 
interfund activity and balances between governmental activities and business-type activities are shown in the 
government-wide financial statements.   
 

The government-wide Statement of Net Position reports all financial and capital resources of the Township (excluding 
fiduciary funds).  It is displayed in a format of assets less liabilities equal net position, with the assets and liabilities shown 
in order of their relative liquidity.  Net positions are required to be displayed in three components:  1) invested in capital 
assets, net of related debt, 2) restricted, and 3) unrestricted.  Invested in capital assets, net of related debt is capital 
assets net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other 
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.  Restricted net 
positions are those with constraints placed on their use by either:  1) externally imposed by creditors (such as through 
debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations or other governments, or 2) imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  All net positions not otherwise classified as restricted, are shown as 
unrestricted.  Generally, the Township would first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for purposes 
for which both restricted and unrestricted net positions are available. 
 

The Government-Wide Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which both direct and indirect expenses of 
the various functions and programs of the Township are offset by program revenues.  Direct expenses are those that are 
clearly identifiable with a specific function or identifiable activity.  Indirect expenses for administrative overhead are 
allocated among the functions and activities using a full cost allocation approach and are presented separately to 
enhance comparability of direct expenses between governments that allocate direct expenses and those that do not.  
Interest on general long-term debt is not allocated to the various functions.  Program revenues include: 1) charges to 
customers or users who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a particular 
function or program and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital 
requirements of a particular function or program.  Taxes, unrestricted investment income and other revenues not 
identifiable with particular functions or programs are included as general revenues.  The general revenues support the 
net costs of the functions and programs not covered by program revenues. 
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

 
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
Also, part of the basic financial statements are fund financial statements for governmental funds and proprietary funds.  
The focus of the fund financial statements is on major funds, as defined by GASB Statement No. 34.  Although this 
reporting model sets forth minimum criteria for determination of major funds (a percentage of assets, liabilities, 
revenues, or expenditures/expenses of fund category and of the governmental and enterprise funds combined), it also 
gives governments the option of displaying other funds as major funds.  Other non-major funds are combined in a single 
column on the fund financial statements. 
 
The Township reports the following major governmental funds: 
 

The General Fund is the Township’s primary operating fund.  It accounts for all financial resources of the general 
government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 
The Fire Operating Fund accounts for property taxes collected for and the related costs to provide fire protection 
to the Township residents. 

 
The Municipal Street Fund accounts for property taxes collected for and related costs to improve Township 
roads. 
 
The M-59/Hartland Road Debt Service Fund accounts for the activity related to the debt and assessments to 
finance a road project. 
 

The Township reports the following major proprietary funds: 
 

The Sewage Disposal System Fund accounts for all the activity associated with the operations and maintenance 
of operating a sewage treatment system. 
 
The Water System Fund accounts for all the activity associated with the operations and maintenance of 
operating a water distribution system. 

 
B.  MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
 
The governmental fund financial statements are prepared on a current financial resources measurement focus and 
modified accrual basis of accounting.  To conform to the modified accrual basis of accounting, certain modifications must 
be made to the accrual method.  These modifications are outlined below: 
 

A. Revenue is recorded when it becomes both measurable and available (received within 60 days after year-end).  
Revenue considered susceptible to accrual includes:  property taxes, sales and use taxes, transient occupancy 
taxes, licenses, fees and permits, intergovernmental revenues, charges for services, fines, forfeits and penalties, 
and interest. 

 
B. Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred.  Principal and interest on general long-

term debt are recorded as fund liabilities when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the debt service 
fund for payments to be made early in the following year. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

C. Disbursements for the purchase of capital assets providing future benefits are considered expenditures.  Bond 
proceeds are reported as another financing source.  

 
With this measurement focus, operating statements present increases and decreases in net current assets and 
unreserved fund balance as a measure of available resources.  This is the traditional basis of accounting for governmental 
funds and also is the manner in which these funds are normally budgeted.  This presentation is deemed most appropriate 
to:  1) demonstrate legal and covenant compliance, 2) demonstrate the sources and uses of liquid resources, and 3) 
demonstrate how the Township’s actual revenues and expenditures conform to the annual budget.  Since the 
governmental funds financial statements are presented on a different basis than the governmental activities column of 
the government-wide financial statements, a reconciliation is provided immediately following each fund statement.  
These reconciliations briefly explain the adjustments necessary to transform the fund financial statements into the 
governmental activities’ column of the government-wide financial statements.   
 
The proprietary funds financial statements are prepared on the same basis (economic resources measurement focus and 
accrual basis of accounting) as the government-wide financial statements.  Therefore, most lines for the total enterprise 
funds on the proprietary funds financial statements will directly reconcile to the business-type activities column on the 
government-wide financial statements.  Because the enterprise funds are combined into a single business-type activities 
column on the government-wide financial statements, certain interfund activities between these funds are eliminated 
in the consolidation for the government-wide financial statements, but are included in the fund columns in the 
proprietary funds financial statements.   
 
Enterprise funds account for operations where the intent of the Township is that the costs of providing goods or services 
to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.  Under GASB 
Statement No. 34, enterprise funds are also required for any activity whose principal revenue sources meet any of the 
following criteria:  1) any activity that has issued debt backed solely by the fees and charges of the activity, 2) if the cost 
of providing services for any activity, including capital costs such as depreciation or debt service, must legally be 
recovered through fees and charges of the activity, or 3) it is the policy of the Township to establish activity fees or 
charges to recover the cost of providing services, including capital costs. 
 
On the proprietary funds financial statements, operating revenues are those that flow directly from the operations of 
the activity, i.e. charges to customers or users who purchase or use the goods or services of that activity.  Operating 
expenses are those that are incurred to provide those goods or services.  Non-operating revenues and expenses are 
items such as investment income and interest expense that are not a result of the direct operations of the activity. 
 
Under GASB standards, the Township has elected for proprietary funds not to apply Financial Accounting Standards 
Board statements issued after November 30, 1989. 
 
When both restricted and unrestricted revenues are available for use, it is the government's policy to use restricted 
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the Township in a trustee or agency capacity on behalf of others and, therefore, 
are not available to support Township programs.  Fiduciary funds are not included in the government-wide financial 
statements as they are not an asset of the Township available to support Township programs.  The Township currently 
maintains an agency fund to account for the monies collected and paid on behalf of developer’s escrow accounts. 
 
C.  CAPITAL ASSETS 
 

Under GASB Statement No. 34, all capital assets, whether owned by governmental activities or business-type activities 
are recorded and depreciated in the government-wide financial statements.  No long-term capital assets or depreciation 
are shown in the governmental fund’s financial statements. 
 

Capital assets, including public domain infrastructure (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks and other assets that are immovable 
and of value only to the Township) are defined as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an 
estimated useful life greater than one year.  Capital assets are recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased 
or constructed.  Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of donation.  Real 
properties are considered capital assets regardless of initial cost. 
 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives 
are not capitalized.  Major improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related 
capital assets. 
 

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives: 
 

  Buildings, structures and improvements   5 to 50 years 
  Utility plant   5 to 50 years 
  Machinery and equipment   2 to 40 years 
  Infrastructure 25 to 75 years 
 

Capital assets transferred between funds are transferred at their net book value (cost less accumulated depreciation), 
as of the date of the transfer. 
 

D. BUDGETARY DATA 
 

The Board of Trustees follows the procedures as outlined in the Uniform Budgeting Manual for Local Units of 
Government in Michigan in the establishment of the various annual budgets. 
 

The budget process is detailed in the approval of the General Appropriations Act adopted by the Board.  The proposed 
budget is then submitted for discussion and approved by the entire Township Board.  The budget is approved by activity 
rather than line item.  If and when it becomes necessary to amend certain amounts in the budget, a proposal outlining 
the desired changes is made to and approved by the Township Board at any of their regular meetings.  Budget 
appropriations made, but not expended by year end, will lapse with the fiscal year end. 
 

For the year ended March 31, 2022, expenditures did exceed appropriations immaterially in the General Fund. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
E. PROPERTY TAXES 
 

The Township’s property taxes are levied and become a lien on each December 1st based on the taxable value of property 
located in the Township as of the preceding December 31st.  These taxes are due on February 14 with the final collection 
date of February 28 before they are added to the county delinquent tax rolls.  The Township recognized the amount 
levied December 1, 2021 as revenue for the year ended March 31, 2022. 
 

The 2021 taxable valuation of the Township totaled $778,337,990.  The delinquent real property taxes of the Township 
are purchased by Livingston County.  The county sells tax notes, the proceeds of which will be used to pay the Township 
for these property taxes.  The county disbursed the delinquent taxes to the Township in June 2022.  
 
The Township levies the following millage: 

 

General Township .7693

Fire and fire capital improvements 2.0437

Road improvement 1.4317

Total millage 4.2447
 

  
F. MANAGEMENT’S ESTIMATES 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, 
actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
G. CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
For purposes of the statement of cash flow, demand deposits and short-term investments with a maturity date of three 
months or less when acquired are considered to be cash equivalents. 
 
H. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Township is exposed to various risks of loss pertaining to property loss, torts, errors and omissions and employee 
injuries (workers’ compensation), as well as medical benefits provided to employees.  The Township has purchased 
commercial insurance for these claims.  Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant 
uninsured losses to the Township.  Settled claims related to the commercial insurance have not exceeded the amount of 
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
 
I. INVENTORIES AND PREPAID ITEMS 
 
Inventories are valued at cost.  Cost is determined using the first-in, first-out method.  Inventory consists of expendable 
supplies held for consumption.  Inventories are capitalized under the consumption method, whereby expenditures are 
capitalized as inventory until used. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
J. CAPITALIZATION OF INTEREST 
 
A portion of the interest cost incurred on capital projects is capitalized on assets that require a period of time for 
construction or to otherwise prepare them for their intended use.  Such amounts are amortized over the useful lives of 
the assets.  No such interest has been incurred during the year ended March 31, 2022. 

 
K. INCOME TAXES 
 
As a governmental agency, the Township is exempt from income taxes. 
 
L. RECEIVABLES 
 
All receivables are reported at their gross value and, where appropriate, are reduced by the estimated portion that is 
expected to be uncollectible.  See Note 9 for further discussion on special assessment receivables and related allowance 
for uncollectable receivables. 
 
M. INVESTMENTS 
 
Investments are stated at market value; except investments in high quality commercial paper or negotiable certificates 
of deposit with maturities of 270 days or less at date of acquisition are stated at cost as such does not differ significantly 
from fair value. 
 
N.  FUND EQUITY 
 
According to GASB standards, the Township wishes to enhance the usefulness of fund balance information by providing 
clearer fund balance classifications that can be more consistently applied and by clarifying the existing governmental 
fund-type definitions.  This statement establishes fund balance classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily 
on the extent to which a government is bound to observe constraints imposed on the use of the resources reported in 
governmental funds. Under this standard, the fund balance classifications of reserved, designated, and 
unreserved/undesignated were replace with five new classifications - nonspendable, restricted, committed, assigned, 
and unassigned. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
N.  FUND EQUITY (continued)  
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report the following components of fund balance: 
 

• Nonspendable - Amounts that are not in spendable form or are legally or contractually required to be maintained 
intact. 

 

• Restricted - Amounts that are legally restricted by outside parties, constitutional provisions, or enabling 
legislation for use for a specific purpose. 

 

• Committed - Amounts that have been formally set aside by the Township Board for use for specific purposes. 
Commitments are made and can be rescinded only via resolution of the Township Board. 

 

• Assigned - Intent to spend resources on specific purposes expressed by the Township Board; or Supervisor, Clerk, 
and Treasurer; who are authorized by policy approved by the Township Board to make assignments.  All current 
year assignments have been made by the Supervisor, Clerk, and Treasurer. 

 

• Unassigned - Amounts that do not fall into any other category above. This is the residual classification of amounts 
in the General Fund and represents fund balance that has not been assigned to other funds and has not been 
restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes in the General Fund.  In other governmental funds, only 
negative unassigned amounts are reported, if any, and represent expenditures incurred for specific purposes 
exceeding the amounts previously restricted, committed, or assigned to those purposes. 

 
O.  DEFERRED INFLOW AND OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES 
 
The Township has previously adopted GASB No. 65 “Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities”.  Under this 
standard the Township will report two new sections in the Statement of Net Position (Government Wide Statements) 
and in the Balance Sheet (Fund Statements) which are called Deferred Outflow of resources (previously called assets) 
and Deferred Inflow of resources (previously called liabilities). 
 
These separate financial statement elements which meet the definition of deferred outflow and inflow of resources, are 
no longer considered assets or liabilities. 
 
Deferred outflow of resources represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period.  The element 
will not be recognized as an expense and (or) expenditure until the time restriction is met.  The Township did not have 
any deferred outflows as of March 31, 2022. 
 
Deferred inflow of resources represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period.  The element will 
not be recognized as revenue until the time restriction is met. The Township has one transaction type which consist of 
elements considered deferred inflows listed on the balance sheets of various funds. 
 
The transaction type listed as a deferred inflow of resources are special assessments levied over a period of years, in 
which the future principle collections exceeding one year are unavailable for fund accounting purposes.  Therefore, the 
deferred inflow is only listed on the Balance Sheets under Fund Accounting. 
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 
 
P. BOND ISSUANCE COSTS AND BOND DISCOUNTS 
 
On government-wide financial statements, bond discounts and premiums are deferred and amortized over the term of 
the bonds using the straight-line method, which approximates the effective interest method.  The unamortized portion 
is recorded as unamortized bond discounts or premiums on the statement of net positions. 
 
On the governmental fund financial statements, issuance costs and bond discounts or premiums are recognized in the 
current period.  Bond issuance costs are classified as expenditures. 
 
 
NOTE 2 - DESCRIPTION OF REPORTING ENTITY 
 
In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) standards, all funds, agencies, and activities of 
Hartland Township have been included in the basic financial statements. 
 
The following potential component unit has been evaluated under the criteria established by GASB statement number 
39 and determined not to be a component unit based upon financial independence and accountability: 
 

HARTLAND DEERFIELD FIRE AUTHORITY 
 
Hartland Township appoints two members of the Authority’s four-member Board.  The Authority is fiscally 
independent from the Township.  The Authority is audited as an independent entity in compliance with Public Act. 
2. 
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NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended March 31, 2022, was as follows: 
 

Balance Balance

4/1/2021 Additions Deletions Reclassification 3/31/2022

Governmental activities:

Capita l  assets  not being depreciated

Construction in progress 40,069$        $                   $                   (40,069)$       $                   

Land 2,482,407                                       2,482,407     

Total  assets  not being depreciated 2,522,476                                       (40,069)         2,482,407     

Other capita l  assets :

Bui ldings  and improvements 5,813,262     6,771            5,820,033     

Parks 4,051,057     513,945        40,069          4,605,071     

Vehicles  and equipment 729,938        729,938        

Total  other capita l  assets 10,594,257   520,716                         40,069          11,155,042   

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Bui ldings  and improvements (2,733,410)    (150,581)       (2,883,991)    

Parks (1,081,037)    (262,584)       (1,343,621)    

Vehicles  and equipment (516,740)       (51,690)         (568,430)       

Total  accumulated depreciation (4,331,187)    (464,855)                                         (4,796,042)    

Other capita l  assets , net 6,263,070     55,861                           40,069          6,359,000     

Governmental capital assets, net 8,785,546$   55,861$        $                   $                   8,841,407$   

There is  no related long-term debt outstanding.

Depreciation was  charged to functions  as  fol lows:

Governmental  activi ties :

General  government 133,291$      

Publ ic safety 68,980          

Parks  and recreation 262,584

Total 464,855$      
 

77



 

39 

HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

 
NOTE 3 - CAPITAL ASSETS (continued) 
 

Balance Balance

4/1/2021 Additions Deletions Reclassification 3/31/2022

Business-type activities:

Capita l  assets  not being depreciated

Land - sewer 26,842$        $                   (26,842)$       $                   $                   

Land - water 300,000        300,000        

Construction in progress 329,100        1,170            (48,400)         281,870        

Total other capital assets not being 

depreciated 655,942        1,170            (26,842)         (48,400)         581,870        

Other capita l  assets :

Intangible-sewer system

and related equipment 21,839,792   21,839,792   

Water plant and dis tribution system 9,302,407     65,790          48,400          9,416,597     

Total  other capita l  assets

at his torica l  cost 31,142,199   65,790                           48,400          31,256,389   

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Sewer system (6,087,214)    (436,670)       (6,523,884)    

Water system (4,317,926)    (234,891)       (4,552,817)    

Total  accumulated depreciation (10,405,140)  (671,561)                                         (11,076,701)  

Other capita l  assets , net 20,737,059   (605,771)                        48,400          20,179,688   

Business-type capital assets, net 21,393,001$ (604,601)$     (26,842)$        $                  20,761,558   

Related long-term debt outstanding at March 31, 2022 (12,145,073)

Business-type capital assets, net related long-term debt 8,616,485$   

Depreciation was  charged to functions  as  fol lows:

Bus iness-type activi ties :

Sewer 436,670$      

Water service 234,891        

Total 671,561$      
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NOTE 4 - INTERFUND ACTIVITIES AND BALANCES 
 
Interfund receivables and payables exist at March 31, 2022.  These represent short-term borrowings and amounts 
owed for reimbursements between other funds. 
 

General Fund 570$                Current Tax Collection Fund 570$                

Water System Fund 476 General Fund 476

Fire Fund 185 General Fund 185

Sewage Disposal System Fund 9,336 Water System Fund 9,336

10,567$          10,567$          

INTERFUND RECEIVABLE INTERFUND PAYABLE

 
 

Interfund transfers for the year ended March 31, 2022 were as follows: 
 

Transfer In Transfer Out Amount

General Fund Cemetary Fund 24,381

Capital Improvements Fund Hartland Shores Fund 22,226             

Totals 46,607$          
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NOTE 5 - LONG TERM LIABILITIES  
 
General Obligation Bonds 
 
The Township has issued general obligation special assessment bonds to provide funds used for road construction 
projects, and water and sewer system expansion projects.  General obligation bonds are outstanding as of March 31, 
2022 for governmental and business-type activities as follows: 
 

Issuance Annual Principal Final Interest Debt

Purpose Amount Installments Maturity Rate(s) Outstanding

Governmental activities:

Refunding Bonds , Series  2019 2,790,000$ $150,000 - $250,000 5/1/33 .05 -3.00% 2,300,000$   

Capita l  Improvement, Series  2015 1,650,000 170,000 - 205,000 4/1/24 3.00% 400,000        

Capita l  Improvement, Series  2016 2,750,000 325,000 - 375,000 4/1/24 3.00% 750,000        

Road Specia l  Assessment, Series  2018 860,000 85,000 - 110,000 6/1/27 3.00 - 3.125% 600,000        

Total for governmental activities 4,050,000     

Business-type activities:

Water System, Series  2017 1,010,000 225,000 - 280,000 5/1/21 2.00%

Sewer System - Refunding Series  2011 5,610,000 700,000 - 705,000 11/1/33 4.00 - 5.25%

Sewer System - Refunding Series  2016 11,430,000 400,000 - 1,175,000 11/1/30 1.50 - 3.00% 6,470,000

Sewer System  Series  2021 Refunding 4,775,000 560,000- 620,000 3/31/34 3.75% avg 4,775,000

Sewer System - Lake Tyrone 2016 1,312,640 52,740 - 79,673 4/1/35 2.50% 900,073

Total for business-type activities 12,145,073

Total general obligation bonds payable 16,195,073$ 
 

 
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows: 
 

Year Ending

March 31, Principal Interest Principal Interest

3/31/2023 890,000$          113,750$          1,178,600$       374,666$          

3/31/2024 900,000 88,476 1,156,530 334,837

3/31/2025 320,000 62,588 1,156,530 311,399

3/31/2026 310,000 53,688 1,129,460 287,960

3/31/2027 310,000 44,388 1,124,460 254,399

4/1/2027 - 3/31/2032 1,015,000 113,094 5,024,530 709,376

4/1/2032 - 3/31/2034 305,000 9,075 1,374,963 62,836

4,050,000$       485,059$          12,145,073$    2,335,473$       

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
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NOTE 5 - LONG TERM LIABILITIES (continued) 
 
Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 
 
The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended March 31, 2022: 
 

Balance Balance Due Within

4/1/2021 Additions Reductions 3/31/2022 One Year

Governmental activities:

General obligation bonds payable

Refunding Bonds, Series 2019 2,540,000$     $               (240,000)$    2,300,000$    230,000$     

Capital Improvement, Series 2015 590,000         (190,000)      400,000         195,000       

Capital Improvement, Series 2016 1,100,000      (350,000)      750,000         375,000       

Road Special Assessment, Series 2018 690,000         (90,000)         600,000         90,000         

Governmental activities

  long-term liabilities 4,920,000                        (870,000)      4,050,000      890,000       

Business-type activities:

General obligation bonds payable

Water System, Series 2017 225,000         (225,000)                          

Sewer System - Refunding Series  2011 5,610,000      (5,610,000)                       

Sewer System - Refunding Series  2016 7,620,000      (1,150,000)   6,470,000      1,120,000    

Sewer System  Series  2021 Refunding 4,775,000     4,775,000      

Sewer System - Lake Tyrone 2016 958,673         (58,600)         900,073         58,600         

Business-type activities

  long-term liabilities 14,413,673    4,775,000     (7,043,600)   12,145,073    1,178,600    

Total long-term liabilities 19,333,673$ 4,775,000$  (7,913,600)$ 16,195,073$ 2,068,600$ 
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NOTE 6 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLAN 
 

The Township participated in three 401(a) defined contribution plans with International City/County Management 
Association Retirement Corporation (ICMA-RA). 
 

ICMA- RA 401(a) plan #109341 covers all full-time employees hired prior to July 1, 2017, the Clerk, Treasurer, 
Supervisor and four Trustees.  Full-time employees, the Clerk and the Treasurer are required to contribute 2.5% 
of his/her compensation and the Township contributes 10%.  The Supervisor and four Trustees are required to 
contribute $25 monthly and the Township contributes $75 monthly.  The plan vests 100% immediately. The plan 
members and Township contributed $19,313 and $75,854, respectively during the fiscal year ended March 31, 
2022.   
 
IRMA-RA 401(a) plan #109348 covers all full-time employee hired after July 1, 2017.  Employees are required to 
contribute 2.5% and the Township contributes 10%.  The plan vests 100% at year 5.  The plan members and 
Township contributed $6,601 and $26,405, respectively during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2022.   
 
IMCA-RA  401(a) plan #109350 covers all officials elected after July 1, 2017. The Clerk and Treasurer are required 
to contribute 2.5 % and the Township contributes 10%.  The Supervisor and Trustee are required to contribute 
$25 monthly and the Township contributes $75 monthly.  The plan vests 100% at year 4. The plan members and 
Township contributed $600 and $1,800, respectively during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2022. 
 

The Township also participates in the IMCA-RA 457 Deferred Compensation Plan (a defined contribution plan).    
Substantially all full-time employees, elected official and trustees are included in the Plan. Plan eligibility is a minimum 
age of 18 (and not more than a maximum age of 75).  Employee contributions to the Plan are voluntary and the Township 
does not contribute to the Plan. For the year ended March 31, 2022, employees contributed $41,860 to the Plan. 
  
Amounts in the defined contribution plans are available to participants in accordance with Internal Revenue Service 
guidelines for such plans. 
 
NOTE 7 - DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND INVESTMENTS 
 

Michigan Compiled Laws, Section 129.91, authorizes the Township to deposit and invest in the accounts of Federally 
insured banks, credit unions, and savings and loan associations; bonds, securities and other direct obligations of the 
United States, or any agency or instrumentality of the United States; United States government or Federal agency 
obligation repurchase agreements; bankers’ acceptance of United States banks; commercial paper rated by two standard 
rating agencies within the two highest classifications, which mature not more than 270 days after the date of purchase; 
obligations of the State of Michigan or its political subdivisions which are rated investment grade; and mutual funds 
composed of investment vehicles which are legal for direct investment by local units of government in Michigan.  
Financial institutions eligible for deposit of public funds must maintain an office in Michigan.  The deposits are in 
accordance with statutory authority. 
 

The investment policy adopted by the Board in accordance with Public Act 196 of 1997 has authorized investments in all 
the investments mentioned in the preceding paragraph. 
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NOTE 7 - DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 
 

As of March 31, 2022, cash, cash equivalents, and investments consist of the following: 
 

Total Cash Investments

Deposits

Checking accounts 3,024,999$         3,024,999$         $                            

Money market and savings accounts 18,286,543 18,286,543

Non-negotiable CDs 1,568,094 1,568,094

Total deposits 22,879,636$      21,311,542$      1,568,094$         

Investments

Negotiable CDs 251,876$            $                            251,876$            

Total investments 251,876                               251,876

Total deposits and investments 23,131,512$      21,311,542$      1,819,970$         

Cash and investments are presented in the financial statements in the following areas:

Statement of Net Position

Cash and investments 23,032,130$      

Fiduciary Funds

Cash 22,874

Total cash and investments 23,055,004$      

 
 
The carrying amount of cash is stated at $23,055,004 as of March 31, 2022.  The difference between the carrying amounts 
and amounts mentioned above stem from outstanding checks and outstanding deposits and accrued interest. 
 

Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Deposits - This is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Township will not be able to recover its deposits.  The 
Township evaluates each financial institution with which it deposits funds and assesses the level of risk of each 
institution; only those institutions with an acceptable estimated risk level are used as depositories. 
 

Insured by FDIC 4,789,207$         

Uninsured and collateralized 1,040,826

Uninsured and uncollateralized 17,049,603

22,879,636$      
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NOTE 7 - DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS AND INVESTMENTS (continued) 
 
Investment - This is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, the Township will not be 
able to recover the value of its investments.  The Township does not have a policy to cover custodial credit risk of 
investments.  As of March 31, 2022, investments totaled $251,876, which was not exposed to custodial credit.  
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
Concentration of credit risk is the risk attributable to the magnitude of a Township’s investment in a single issuer.  The 
Township’s investment policy requires diversification with a primary focus on safety.  However the policy does not place 
a fixed percentage limit on any one issuer. 
 

Investment Type Issuer Percentage of Portfolio

Negotiable certificate of deposit Bank of North America 100%

 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair values of investments and 
cash deposits.  The Township does not have a formal policy limiting investment maturities that would help manage its 
exposure to fair value losses from increasing interest rates.  As of March 31, 2022, the Township had the following 
investments: 

Investment Type Fair Value 1-5 years

Negotiable certificate of deposit 251,876$            251,876$            

Total 251,876$            251,876$            

 
 
Credit Risk 
 
Credit Risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligations.  The Township 
investment policy limits investment to those authorized by Public Act 20 of 1943.  Commercial paper must be rated with 
in the two (2) highest classifications established by not less than two (2) standard ratings services.  Ratings are not 
required for U.S. Government obligations and money market accounts.  As of March 31, 2022, the Township’s investment 
were exposed to credit risk as follows: 
 

Investment Type Ratings by Standard & Poor Amount

Negotiable certificate of deposit Unrated 251,876$                                             

Total 251,876$                                             
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

 
 
NOTE 8 - SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
 
The Township maintains two enterprise funds, which provide water and sewer services.  Segment information for the 
year ended March 31, 2022, was as follows: 
 

Water Sewer Total

System Disposal Enterprise

Fund System Fund Funds

Operating revenues 693,605$          2,961,831$      3,655,436$      

Depreciation 234,891            436,670            671,561            

Operating income (loss) (28,099)             295,851            267,752            

Non-operating revenues (expenses) (217,994)           (598,889)           (816,883)           

Change in net position 2,268,248         20,443               2,288,691         

Total assets 10,478,369      28,646,095      39,124,464      

Accounts payable 63,394               290,861            354,255            

Net working capital 4,950,865         5,373,769         10,324,634      

Total equity 10,396,515      15,040,062      25,436,577      
 

 
  

85



 

47 

HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

 
NOTE 9 - SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE 
 
Special assessments are levied on various properties within the Township that benefit from certain capital 
improvements.  Generally, such assessments are established in accordance with Public Act 188 of 1954 and collected 
from property owners in annual installments over a period of five (5) to twenty (20) years.  The annual receipts of such 
assessments are typically used to service debt which financed capital improvements in the assessment district. 
 
The current economic environment has caused a number of property owners in various special assessment districts 
to become delinquent on their obligation to pay the annual installments in a timely manner.  In normal times these 
delinquent assessments would be satisfied through a lien and foreclosure process.  However, due to the decline in the 
value of the property collateralizing such assessments it has become apparent a portion, if not all, of certain 
assessments will ultimately be uncollectable. 
 
Management has estimated that the following long-term special assessments receivable will be uncollectable: 
 

Sewage

Water Disposal

System System Total

Gross special assessments receivable $                         3,835,311$      3,835,311$      

Less:  allowance for uncollectable assessments

Net special assessments receivable $                         3,835,311$      3,835,311$      

Total debt $                         12,145,073$    12,145,073$    
 

 
NOTE 10 - HEALTH SAVINGS ACCOUNT 
 
The Township adopted a Health Savings Account (HSA) effective July 1, 2009.  A Health Savings Account was created 
for the purpose of saving and paying for qualified medical expenses in connection with a high deductible health plan 
(HDHP).  The Township’s HDHP is a health plan that: (1) has an annual deductible of $1,600 for single coverage or (2) 
has an annual deductible of $4,000 for family (coverage of more than one individual).  In addition, the annual out-of-
pocket expenses required to be paid under the plan cannot exceed $4,000 for individual coverage and $8,000 for 
family coverage. 
 
Only employees that are eligible for the HDHP are eligible to participate in the HSA.  The Township contributes $1,600 
annually for individual coverage, and $3,200 for couple/family coverage.  Deposits are made directly into the 
participating individual’s personal account in four equal installments at the beginning of each quarter.  Employees can 
elect to contribute to their personal accounts, but are not required to do so.  There is no third party involved with the 
HSA, the personal accounts are held at a national bank.  Payments of qualified medical expenses are withdrawn 
directly from the individual’s personal bank account. 
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

 
NOTE 11 - LOAN RECEIVABLE - HARTLAND DEERFIELD FIRE AUTHORITY 
 
On October 5, 2021, the Township entered into a loan agreement and promissory note with Hartland Deerfield Fire 
Authority (the “Authority”), whereby the Township loaned $650,000 to the Authority in order to finance the purchase of 
a new fire engine needed to protect the health, safety and welfare of the firefighters and general public.  The loan bears 
an interest rate of 1% per annum and it requires principal payments of $130,000 , plus interest starting May 1, 2022 and 
annually thereafter until May 1, 2026, at which time the remaining principal and interest shall be paid in full.  
 
NOTE 12 - HARTLAND GLEN DEVELOPMENT SETTLEMENT 
 
During the fiscal year, the Township reached a settlement with Hartland Glen Development, LLC and Clyde Land 
Investment, and agreed to the following: 

• Hartland Glen Development, LLC,  purchased 470 REUs from the Township and said REUs are paid in full 

• Hartland Township forgave remaining unpaid payments for REUs (approximately 133) 

• Hartland Township purchased an additional 25 REUs from Hartland Glen Development, LLC, so that Hartland 
Glen Development, LLC had a net of 445 fully paid REUs 

• Hartland Township deeded back to Hartland Glen Development, LLC, four parcels Hartland Glen Development, 
LLC, lost through tax foreclosure (value of land was $26,842) 

• Hartland Glen Development, LLC and Clyde Land Investment were paid $580,000; Hartland Township paid 
$380,000 and $200,000 was paid by the Township’s insurance carrier.  

 
NOTE 13 - SPECIAL ASSSESSMENT CHARGEBACK PAYABLE 
 
Since 2009, the Township has estimated potential chargebacks payable to Livingston County on delinquent sewer special 
assessments created in 2005. Livingston County has the authority to pursue delinquent tax payments on all properties, 
while the Township does not. In order to facilitate this collection process, Livingston County annually reimburses local 
taxing authorities for their share of uncollected tax receipts, including special assessments. Generally, properties sold 
through tax foreclosure provide the reimbursement to the County to recoup advanced taxes. If properties are sold for 
less than the amount owing, including interest and fees, the taxing authority must reimburse the County for the 
difference plus interest. During 2008, the Township identified several properties that were at risk for foreclosure, and at 
that time began calculating the potential chargebacks owing. During fiscal year 2021, the final property on the 
Township’s list, was sold at foreclosure, with the subsequent chargeback billed by the County in fiscal year 2022. The 
Township paid $63,077 in additional interest, while the remaining balance of $472,832 was covered by the sewer payable 
and other governmental funds (general, fire, roads). 
 
NOTE 14 - WATER SYSTEM SPECIAL ASSESSMENT SURPLUS REFUNDS 
 
The Township issued $8,960,000 20-year limited tax general obligation bonds to construct the water system in 2001, at 
a net interest rate of 4.72%. Special assessments on connecting properties were established over the same time period 
at a rate of 5.72% to cover the annual bond obligations. These bonds were refunded in 2017 at a net interest rate of 
1.53%, and net savings of $182,770. The bonds were paid off at the beginning of the 2022 fiscal year. Subsequently, the 
Township determined the fund had a surplus of collections over bond payments in excess of the state allowance of 5% 
over the original special assessment roll. The Township allocated the surplus of $255,124 among the properties assessed 
in December 2021 and issued refund checks. 
  

87



 

49 

HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

 
NOTE 15 - COVID 19 
 
In March 2020 the governor of Michigan took measures to contain the spread of the COVID-19 virus, including travel 
bans, quarantines, social distancing, and closures of non-essential services. This has triggered significant disruptions to 
the economy. The Township has taken steps to reduce the negative effect on its financial position by taking cost 
reduction measures.  As a result, the Township had a positive increase to the net position at March 31, 2022. The 
Township continues to carefully monitor the situation. 
 
NOTE 16 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 
 
Subsequent events have been evaluated through August 16, 2022, which is the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued.   
 
Management has determined the ongoing COVID-19 events mentioned in Note 15 are non-adjusting subsequent events. 
Accordingly, the financial position and statement of activities as of and for the year ended March 31, 2022, have not 
been adjusted for their impact. The duration and impact of COVID-19 remains unclear at this time. While the Township 
is optimistic about continuing operations going forward, it is not possible to reliably estimate the duration and severity 
of these consequences, as well as their impact on the financial position and statement of activities of the Township for 
future periods. 
 
Management has determined that the Township does not have any other material recognizable or nonrecognizable 
events. 
 
NOTE 17 - UPCOMING GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS 
 
GASB 87 - LEASES 
 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB Standard No. 87, Leases to improve the accounting 
and financial reporting of leases by governments.  This Standard requires the recognition of lease assets and liabilities 
for leases that were previously classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows and outflows of resources based 
on the payment provisions of the contract.  This Standard will require a lessee to recognize a lease liability and right-to-
use lease asset and a lessor to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources.   
 

The Township is currently assessing the impact that this Standard will have on the Township’s financial statements, which 
will be required to be implemented for the statements for the year ended March 31, 2023. 
 
GASB 89 - ACCOUNTING FOR INTEREST COST INCURRED BEFORE THE END OF A CONSTRUCTION PERIOD 
 

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued GASB Standard No. 89 to establish accounting 
requirements for interest costs that are incurred before the end of a construction period.  This Standard will require 
interest costs incurred before the end of a construction period to be recognized as an expense in the period in which the 
cost is incurred for financial statements prepared using the economic resources measurement focus.  As such, the 
interest will no longer be included in the historical cost of a capital asset reported in a business-type activity or enterprise 
fund.  This Standard should be applied prospectively. 
 

The Township is currently assessing the impact that this Standard will have on the Township’s financial statements, which 
will be required to be implemented for the statements for the year ended March 31, 2023. 

88



 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

89



 

51 

HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

GENERAL FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Variance

with Final

Budget

Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Taxes $                       $                       598,792$        $                       

State revenue 1,637,762      

Licenses and permits 254,517          

Interest and rents 59,047            

Charges for services 490,387          

Miscellaneous 117,365          

Total revenues 2,775,712      2,783,462      3,157,870 374,408

EXPENDITURES 2,636,724      2,818,298      2,550,192      268,106

Excess of revenues over (under)

  expenditures  138,988 (34,836) 607,678 642,514

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in                      22,226            46,607            24,381

Total other financing sources (uses) 22,226 46,607            24,381

Net change in fund balance 138,988 (12,610) 654,285 666,895

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2021 4,095,920 4,095,920 4,095,920  

FUND BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2022 4,234,908$    4,083,310$    4,750,205$    666,895$        

Budgets
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

MUNICIPAL STREET FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Variance

with Final

Budget

Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Taxes  $                        $                     1,114,366$   $                      

State - personal property tax reimbursement 2,955             

Interest and rent 1,139             

Other revenue 7

Total revenues  1,077,833 1,107,697 1,118,467 10,770

EXPENDITURES

Project costs 280,403

Debt

Principal 540,000

Interest 50,700

Total expenditures 1,621,250     1,322,950 871,103 451,847

Net change in fund balance            (543,417)          (215,253)           247,364           462,617 

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2021           1,989,409 1,989,409      1,989,409                             

FUND BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2022  $      1,445,992  $    1,774,156  $   2,236,773  $       462,617 

Budgets
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

FIRE OPERATING FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Variance

with Final

Budget

Favorable

Original Final Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Taxes $                     $                      1,590,730$   $                      

State - personal property tax reimbursement 3,611              

Interest 423                  

Miscellaneous 171

Total revenues 1,353,457 1,577,473 1,594,935 17,462

EXPENDITURES

Authority contributions 1,237,344

Repairs and maintenance 15,103

Tax chargebacks 1,600              

Capital outlay 6,771

Professional fees 1,834

Utility/assessments 789

Total expenditures 1,221,479 1,321,543 1,263,441 58,102

Net change in fund balance 131,978 255,930 331,494 75,564

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2021 1,372,393 1,372,393 1,372,393  

FUND BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2022 1,504,371$  1,628,323$   1,703,887$   75,564$         

Budgets
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

 
NOTE - BUDGETARY INFORMATION 
 
Budget Overruns 
 
There were no expenditures that exceeded appropriations in funds that were required by law to adopt budgets 
during the year ended March 31, 2022. 
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS 
FUNDS INCLUDED IN GASB 54 CONSOLIDATION 

MARCH 31, 2022 
 

General Fund Capital Totals

Pre  GASB 54 - Improvement Restated 

Consolidation Fund Eliminations General Fund

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 2,783,734$    1,327,774$    $                    4,111,508$    

Taxes receivable 23,226            23,226

State shared revenue receivable 305,141          305,141

Accounts receivable - other 58,925            58,925

Loan - Hartland Deerfield Fire Authority 650,000          650,000

Interest 368                  368

Prepaid expense 9,227               9,227

Due from other funds 570 2,003               (2,003)              570                  

Total assets 3,831,191$    1,329,777$    (2,003)$            5,158,965$    

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 58,334$          12,216$          $                    70,550$          

Accrued expenditures 64,226            64,226

Compliance reserves 50,394            50,394

Unearned revenue 157,721 157,721

Due to others 65,208 65,208

Due to other funds 2,664               (2,003)              661                  

Total liabilities 398,547          12,216            (2,003)              408,760          

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable 9,227                                    9,227               

Committed - capital improvement 1,317,561 1,317,561      

Unassigned 3,423,417      3,423,417      

Total fund balance 3,432,644      1,317,561                            4,750,205      

Total liabilities and fund balance 3,831,191$    1,329,777$    (2,003)$            5,158,965$    
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEETS 
ALL NONMAJOR FUNDS 

MARCH 31, 2022 

Liquor Law Cable Millpointe Bullard Lake

Cemetery ARPA Enforcement Television Road SAD Road SAD Totals

ASSETS

Cash and investments $          797,270$  87,222$   152,848$    265,304$     66,463$   1,369,107$  

Specia l  assessment receivable                                        384,162       112,865 497,027       

Fees  receivable 22,827        22,827         

Total assets $          797,270$  87,222$   175,675$    649,466$     179,328$ 1,888,961$  

LIABILITIES

Accounts  payable $          $           $          5,712$        $              $          5,712$         

Unearned revenue 797,107 797,107

Total liabilities             797,107                5,712                                      802,819       

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Unavai lable revenue                                                     383,656       112,865 496,521       

FUND BALANCE

Restricted

Publ ic safety 87,222     87,222         

Debt service 252,029       65,902 317,931       

ARPA 163           163              

Committed                 

Cable 169,963 169,963       

  Ass igned for future budget 

defici t 13,781         561          14,342         

Total fund balance             163           87,222     169,963      265,810       66,463     589,621       

Total liabilities, deferred inflow of 

  resources and fund balance $          797,270$  87,222$   175,675$    649,466$     179,328$ 1,888,961$  

DEBT SERVICE FUNDSSPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
FUNDS INCLUDED IN GASB 54 CONSOLIDATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Totals

General Fund - Capital Restated

Pre GASB 54  Improvement General

Consolidation Fund Eliminations Fund

REVENUES

Taxes 598,792$     $                $                598,792$     

State revenues 1,637,762    1,637,762    

Licenses and permits 233,367       21,150          254,517        

Interest and rents 58,695          352                59,047          

Charges for services 490,387       490,387        

Miscellaneous 117,365       117,365        

Total revenues 3,136,368    21,502          3,157,870    

EXPENDITURES 2,033,354    516,838        2,550,192    

Excess of revenues over

 (under)  expenditures 1,103,014    (495,336)      607,678        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 24,381 908,455 (886,229)      46,607          

Transfers (out) (886,229)                         886,229                          

Total other financing sources (uses) (861,848)      908,455        46,607          

Net changes in fund balances 241,166       413,119        654,285        

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2021 3,191,478    904,442        4,095,920    

FUND BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2022 3,432,644$ 1,317,561$  $                     4,750,205$  
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
ALL NONMAJOR FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Liquor Law Cable Ore Valley Millpointe Bullard Lake

Cemetery ARPA Enforcement Television SAD Road SAD Road SAD Totals

REVENUES

Special assessments

Principal $                    $                    $                    $               $              86,424$     16,124$     102,548$      

Interest                                                                                  19,730        4,257 23,987            

Licenses and permits                        13,473            91,546                                           105,019         

Interest and rents                        163 41                       70                  44                 102               26                   446                    

Total revenues                        163                    13,514            91,616        44                 106,256     20,407        232,000         

EXPENDITURES

Public works 59,438        2,003 61,441            

General government                        

Debt service

Principal                  90,000        90,000            

Interest                  19,988                           19,988            

Total expenditures                                                                      59,438                         109,988     2,003           171,429         

Excess of revenues over (under)

  expenditures                        163                    13,514            32,178        44                 (3,732)         18,404        60,571            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in                                                                                                                           

Transfers (out) (24,381)                                                    (22,226)                       (46,607)           

Total other financing sources (uses) (24,381)                                                                           (22,226)                                          (46,607)           

Net change in fund balances (24,381)           163                    13,514            32,178        (22,182)     (3,732)         18,404        13,964            

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2021 24,381            73,708            137,785     22,182      269,542     48,059        575,657         

FUND BALANCE , MARCH 31, 2022  $                         163$                 87,222$         169,963$   $                   265,810$  66,463$     589,621$      

DEBT SERVICE FUNDSSPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
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This supplementary information shows the General Fund prior to the implementation of GASB 54, and as such does not present the results on 
the basis of generally accepted accounting principles but is presented solely for supplemental information. 

GENERAL FUND (PRE GASB 54 - RESTATEMENT)
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This supplementary information shows the General Fund prior to the implementation of GASB 54, and as such does not present the results on 
the basis of generally accepted accounting principles but is presented solely for supplemental information. 
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

GENERAL FUND (PRE GASB 54 - RESTATEMENT) 
BALANCE SHEET 
MARCH 31, 2022 

 

ASSETS

Cash and investments 2,783,734$      

Accounts receivable

Taxes 23,226

State revenues 305,141

Other 58,925

Loan - Hartland Deerfield Fire Authority 650,000

Interest 368

Due from other funds 570

Prepaid expenditures 9,227

Total assets 3,831,191$      

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 58,334$            

Accrued expenditures 64,226

Compliance reserves 50,394

Unearned revenue 157,721

Due to others 65,208

Due to other funds 2,664

Total liabilities 398,547$          

FUND BALANCE 3,432,644

Total liabilities and fund balance 3,831,191$      
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This supplementary information shows the General Fund prior to the implementation of GASB 54, and as such does not present the results on 
the basis of generally accepted accounting principles but is presented solely for supplemental information. 
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

GENERAL FUND (PRE GASB 54 - RESTATEMENT) 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Variance

Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Taxes $                         598,792$          $                         

Licenses and permits 233,367            

State revenues 1,637,762         

Interest and rent 58,695               

Charges for services 490,387            

Other revenues 117,365            

Total revenues 2,770,962         3,136,368         365,406            

EXPENDITURES 2,220,539         2,033,354         187,185            

Excess of revenues over (under) 

  expenditures 550,423            1,103,014         552,591            

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers in 24,381 24,381               

Transfers (out) (886,229)           (886,229)                                  

Total other financing sources (uses) (886,229)           (861,848)           24,381               

Net change in fund balance (335,806)           241,166            576,972            

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2021 3,191,478         3,191,478                                

FUND BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2022 2,855,672$      3,432,644$      576,972$          
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This supplementary information shows the General Fund prior to the implementation of GASB 54, and as such does not present the results on 
the basis of generally accepted accounting principles but is presented solely for supplemental information. 
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

GENERAL FUND (PRE GASB 54 - RESTATEMENT) 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Variance

Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

TAXES

Current property taxes 587,879$          598,792$          10,913$            

LICENSES AND PERMITS

Mobile home 3,300

Dog licenses 296

Cable fees 229,771

Total licenses and permits 224,610 233,367 8,757

STATE REVENUE

State shared revenue 1,636,187

Personal property tax reimbursement 1,575

Total state revenue 1,326,489 1,637,762 311,273

CHARGES FOR SERVICES

Utility administration 169,995

Tax administration fee 255,801

Zoning fees 35,030

Tax collections fees 17,661

Other 11,900

Total charges for services 491,420 490,387 (1,033)

INTEREST AND RENT

Rental income 56,108

Interest income 2,587

Total interest and rent 58,064 58,695 631

MISCELLANEOUS REVENUES

Donations 23,750

Reimbursements 2,801

Professional review costs 49,409

Miscellaneous 36,363

Farmers market 5,042

Total miscellaneous revenues 82,500 117,365 34,865

Total revenues 2,770,962$      3,136,368$      365,406$          
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This supplementary information shows the General Fund prior to the implementation of GASB 54, and as such does not present the results on 
the basis of generally accepted accounting principles but is presented solely for supplemental information. 
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

GENERAL FUND (PRE GASB 54 - RESTATEMENT) 
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Variance

Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

TOWNSHIP BOARD

Trustee fees $                         26,900$             $                         

Retirement 3,600

Taxes - payroll 2,058

Supplies and postage 74

Audit 9,260

Legal 1,260

Membership and dues 7,522

Contracted services 2,602

Education and training 3,073

Total township board 85,865 56,349 29,516

SUPERVISOR

Supervisor salary 31,000

Taxes - payroll 2,372

Retirement 900

Total supervisor 34,372 34,272 100

TOWNSHIP MANAGER

Wages 98,600

Secretary wages 22,837

Taxes - payroll 9,382

Retirement 10,000

Supplies and postage 665

Membership and dues 316

Education and training 694

Miscellaneous 2,763

Total township manager 153,618 145,257 8,361
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This supplementary information shows the General Fund prior to the implementation of GASB 54, and as such does not present the results on 
the basis of generally accepted accounting principles but is presented solely for supplemental information. 
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

GENERAL FUND (PRE GASB 54 - RESTATEMENT) 
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Variance

Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

ELECTIONS

Supplies and postage 494

Capital outlay 1,624

Total elections 2,150 2,118 32

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Salaries 122,472

Taxes - payroll 9,037

Insurance - benefits 18,036

Retirement 12,217

Supplies and postage 998

Membership and dues 120

Repairs and maintenance 2,794

Education and training 1,385

Total finance department 170,869 167,059 3,810

ASSESSOR

Salaries and wages 152,958

Taxes - payroll 10,991

Insurance - benefits 19,263

Retirement 12,012

Supplies and postage 836

Contracted services 550

Membership and dues 2,183

Tax preparation 3,966

Legal fees 7,355

Printing and publications 527

Repairs and maintenance 5,518

Education and training 881

Total assessor 231,606 217,040 14,566
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This supplementary information shows the General Fund prior to the implementation of GASB 54, and as such does not present the results on 
the basis of generally accepted accounting principles but is presented solely for supplemental information. 
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

GENERAL FUND (PRE GASB 54 - RESTATEMENT) 
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Variance

Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

CLERK

Clerk salary 62,000

Other - clerical salary 43,011

Taxes - payroll 7,639

Insurance - benefits 27,434

Retirement 10,507

Supplies and postage 1,420

Membership and dues 275

Printing and publishing 1,845

Total clerk 158,110 154,131 3,979

VEHICLE USE 3,045 1,837 1,208

BOARD OF REVIEW

Fees 1,190

Wages 420

Taxes - payroll 123

Supplies and postage 258

Printing and publishing 302

Total board of review 3,697 2,293 1,404

TREASURER

Treasurer salary 62,000

Assistant wages 65,703

Taxes - payroll 9,616

Insurance - benefits 10,429

Retirement 11,159

Supplies and postage 1,245

Membership and dues 828

Tax preparation 9,929

Repairs and maintenance 5,565

Education and training 1,314

Miscellaneous 14

Legal fees 294

Total treasurer 183,029 178,096 4,933

DATA PROCESSING 26,400 23,650 2,750                 
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

GENERAL FUND (PRE GASB 54 - RESTATEMENT) 
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Variance
Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)
TOWNSHIP HALL AND GROUNDS

Wages 200

Taxes - payroll 15

Supplies 3,094

Snow removal and mowing 20,716

Contract services 41,504

Telephone 8,736

Utilities 29,032

Repairs and maintenance 7,801

Total township hall and grounds 123,086 111,098 11,988

UNALLOCATED

Office supplies and postage 1,182

Tax chargebacks 5,482

Insurance and bonds 23,403

Repairs and maintenance 3,258

Education and training 1,991

Total unallocated 41,491 35,316 6,175

PLANNING AND ZONING

Wages 201,217

Taxes - payroll 16,341

Insurance - benefits 3,175

Retirement 19,151

Planning commission 12,384

Professional review costs 47,363

Supplies and postage 1,600

Contract services 9,067

Membership and dues 1,853

Legal fees 6,340

Printing and publications 1,160

Repairs and maintenance 316

Liquor license application 2,063

Education and training 50

Total planning and zoning 334,425 322,080 12,345
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This supplementary information shows the General Fund prior to the implementation of GASB 54, and as such does not present the results on 
the basis of generally accepted accounting principles but is presented solely for supplemental information. 
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

GENERAL FUND (PRE GASB 54 - RESTATEMENT) 
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (continued) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Variance

Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

PUBLIC WORKS

Salaries 124,751

Taxes - payroll 9,204

Insurance - benefits 22,838

Retirement 12,307

Supplies and postage 446

Contracted services 21,709

Sampling 18,499

Membership and dues 832

Miscellaneous 889

Education and training 499

Total public works 212,978 211,974 1,004

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 2,172 630 1,542

SIDEWALKS 6,000 4,000 2,000

STREETLIGHTS 17,250 15,839 1,411

ROADS 112,763 96,324 16,439

CABLE

Salaries 39,011

Taxes - payroll 2,960

Contacted services 1,031

Printing and publishing 3,959

Postage and supplies 81

Membership and dues 1,175

Total cable 57,195 48,217 8,978

CODE ENFORCEMENT 20,954 16,837 4,117

DRAINS 10,800 3,169 7,631

SENIOR CITIZENS 22,000 22,000  

COMMUNITY CENTER 22,000 22,000  

CEMETARY 20,966 5,441 15,525

PARKS AND RECREATION 163,698 136,327 27,371

Total expenditures 2,220,539$      2,033,354$      187,185$          
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

MUNICIPAL STREET FUND 
BALANCE SHEET 
MARCH 31, 2022 

 

ASSET

Cash 2,203,971$      

Taxes receivable 32,802

Total assets 2,236,773$      

FUND BALANCE 2,236,773$      
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

MUNICIPAL STREET FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Variance

Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Taxes $                     1,114,366$      $                     

Personal property tax reimbursement 2,955

Interest and rent 1,139

Other revenue 7

Total revenues 1,107,697 1,118,467 10,770

EXPENDITURES

Public works 280,403

Debt

Principal 540,000

Interest 50,700

Total expenditures 1,322,950 871,103 451,847

Net change in fund balance            (215,253)               247,364               462,617 

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2021 1,989,409 1,989,409                             

FUND BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2022  $       1,774,156  $       2,236,773  $          462,617 
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

FIRE OPERATING FUND 
BALANCE SHEET 
MARCH 31, 2022 

 

ASSETS

Cash 1,658,278$      

Taxes receivable 46,848

Due from other funds 185

Total assets 1,705,311$      

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 1,424$               

FUND BALANCE 1,703,887

Total liabilities and fund balance 1,705,311$      
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

FIRE OPERATING FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

Variance

Favorable

Budget Actual (Unfavorable)

REVENUES

Taxes $                     1,590,730$      $                     

Personal property tax reimbursement 3,611                 

Interest 423                     

Miscellaneous 171                     

Total revenues 1,577,473         1,594,935         17,462               

EXPENDITURES

Authority contributions 1,237,344         

Repairs and maintenance 15,103               

Tax chargebacks 1,600                 

Professional fees 1,834

Capital outlay 6,771

Utility/assessments 789                     

Total expenditures 1,321,543         1,263,441         58,102               

Net change in fund balance 255,930            331,494            75,564               

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2021 1,372,393         1,372,393                                

FUND BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2022 1,628,323$      1,703,887$      75,564$            
 

116



 

  

M-59/HARTLAND ROAD DEBT SERVICE FUND 

117



 

79 

HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

M-59/HARTLAND ROAD DEBT SERVICE FUND 
BALANCE SHEET 
MARCH 31, 2022 

 

ASSETS

Cash 439,987$           

Special assessments receivable 2,559,007

Total assets 2,998,994$        

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 500$                   

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenues 2,539,438

FUND BALANCE 459,056

Total liabilities, deferred inflow of resources and fund balance 2,998,994$        
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

M-59/HARTLAND ROAD DEBT SERVICE FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE  

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

REVENUES

Special assessments

Principal 230,858$           

Interest 96,412

   Interest income 166

Total revenues 327,436$           

EXPENDITURES

Debt

Principal 240,000

Interest 65,110

Fees 1,000

Total expenditures 306,110

Net change in fund balance 21,326

FUND BALANCE, APRIL 1, 2021 437,730

FUND BALANCE, MARCH 31, 2022 459,056$           
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 

 
WATER SYSTEM FUND 

BALANCE SHEET 
MARCH 31, 2022 

 
 

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and investments - operating 1,363,719$      

Cash and investments - capital replacement 3,484,203         

Accounts receivable - customers 181,993            

Prepaid 2,328                 

Due from other funds 476                     

Total current assets 5,032,719$      

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Capital assets

Land 300,000            

Construction in progress 281,870            

Water plant and equipment 9,416,597         

9,998,467         

Less: accumulated depreciation (4,552,817)       

Total property, plant and equipment 5,445,650         

Total assets 10,478,369$    

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 63,394$            

Accrued expenditures 9,124                 

Due to other funds 9,336                 

Total current liabilities 81,854$            

NET POSITION

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 5,445,650         

Restricted 4,950,865         

Total net position 10,396,515      

Total liabilities and net position 10,478,369$     
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

WATER SYSTEM FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 

OPERATING REVENUES

User charges 693,605$        

OPERATING EXPENSES

Wages 122,579$        

Taxes - payroll 9,549               

Insurance - benefits 13,309            

Retirement 9,965               

Administration fees 90,383            

Depreciation 234,891          

Contracted services 38,487            

Professional fees 7,375               

Repair and maintenance 51,352            

Insurance 9,634               

Supplies and postage 28,497            

Miscellaneous 2,553               

Meters 103,130          

Total operating expenses 721,704          

Operating (loss) (28,099)           

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Other income 35,780            

Interest income - cash (252,899)        

Interest expense (375)                 

Bond fees (500)                 

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (217,994)        

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Connection fees 2,514,341      

Net income 2,268,248      

NET POSITION APRIL 1, 2021 8,128,267      

NET POSITION, MARCH 31, 2022 10,396,515$  
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

WATER SYSTEM FUND 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 
 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers 655,903$          

Payments to other suppliers for goods or services (499,568)           

Payments to employees (124,832)

Net cash from operating activities 31,503$            

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal and interest paid on bonds (227,250)

Refunds of special assessment (principal and interest), net of collections (217,897)

Acquisition of fixed assets (66,960)

Connection fees 2,514,341

Other revenue 35,280

Net cash from capital and related financing activities 2,037,514

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net proceeds from sales/purchase of investments 375,553

Interest received on cash and cash equivalents 1,540

Net cash from investing activities 377,093

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,446,110

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT APRIL 1, 2021 2,401,812
 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT MARCH 31, 2022 4,847,922$      

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET 

  CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating (loss) (28,099)$           

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

  provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 234,891$          

Changes in assets and liabilities

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable            (37,702)

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expense              (2,328)

(Increase) decrease in due from other funds              14,583 

(Decrease) in accounts payable         (153,879)

Increase (decrease) in due to other funds                6,290 

Increase (decrease) in accrued wages              (2,253)

Total adjustments 59,602

Net cash provided by operating activities 31,503$            
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEM FUND 
BALANCE SHEET 
MARCH 31, 2022 

 
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 4,490,928$        

Investments 1,573,141          

Accounts receivable - bil l ings 767,608             

Interest receivable 2,538                  

Due from other funds 9,336

Special assessments receivable 74,766                

Prepaid 13,050                

Total current assets 6,931,367$        

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 2,337,285

Special assessment receivable 3,835,311          

Total restricted assets 6,172,596

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Sewer system and office equipment 21,839,792        

21,839,792        

Less:  accumulated depreciation (6,523,884)         

Total property, plant and equipment 15,315,908        

OTHER ASSETS

Connection fees receivable 226,224             

Total other assets 226,224             

Total assets 28,646,095$     

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 290,861$           

Accrued interest payable 88,137                

Bonds payable 1,178,600          

Total current liabilities 1,557,598$        

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (from restricted assets)

Bond premium - net of amortization 1,081,962          

Bonds payable after one year 10,966,473        

Total long term liabilities 12,048,435        

Total liabilities 13,606,033        

NET POSITION 

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt            2,549,420 

Unrestricted         12,490,642 

Total net position 15,040,062        

Total liabilities and net position 28,646,095$     
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEM FUND 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 
 
 

OPERATING REVENUES

User charges 2,625,299$      

Septage station fees 336,532

Total revenue 2,961,831$      

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administration 79,650

Depreciation 436,670

Sewer usage fees 2,109,535

Professional fees 26,569

Repair and maintenance 1,070

Insurance 10,830

Supplies and postage 1,656

Total operating expenses 2,665,980         

Operating income 295,851            

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Interest income 682,329            

Miscellaneous revenue 455

County chargeback for special assessment (63,077)             

Settlement costs (406,842)           

Special assessment write offs (342,082)           

Interest expense and bond fees (469,672)           

Total non-operating revenues (expenses) (598,889)           

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

Connection fees 254,989            

Surcharge fees 68,492               

Total capital contributions 323,481            

Net income (loss) 20,443               

NET POSITION, APRIL 1, 2021 15,019,619

NET POSITION, MARCH 31, 2022 15,040,062$    
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HARTLAND TOWNSHIP 
 

SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEM FUND 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from customers 2,933,962$      

Payments to other suppliers for goods or services (2,178,079)

Net cash from operating activities 755,883$          

CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) CAPITAL AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Principal and interest paid on capital debt (1,663,077)

Collections of special assessment (principal and interest) 974,054

Connection fees 179,581

County chargeback for special assessment (63,077)

Settlement costs (380,000)

Other revenue 4,187

Net cash from capital and related financing activities (948,332)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net proceeds from sales/purchase of investments 258,637

Interest received on cash and cash equivalents 7,145

Net cash from (used in)  investing activities 265,782

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 73,333

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT APRIL 1, 2021 6,754,880

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT MARCH 31, 2022 6,828,213$      

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET 

  CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating income 295,851$          

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

  provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 436,670$          

Special assessment write off 342,082            

Land returned in settlement 26,842               

Change in assets and liabilities:

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (27,869)             

(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenditures 1,917                 

(Increase) decrease in due from others 9,123                 

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (346,383)           

Increase (decrease) due to others 8,976                 

Increase (decrease) due to other funds 8,674                 

Total adjustments 460,032            

Net cash provided by operating activities 755,883$          
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Hartland Township Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memorandum 
 
 
Submitted By: Michael Luce, Director of Public Works 

Subject: Resolution: Hartland Woods Revised Assessment Roll 

Date: August 9, 2022 

 

Recommended Action 

Move to Adopt the resolution amending the Hartland Woods Road Improvement assessment to reflect the 

project cost savings. 

 

 

 

Discussion 

The Hartland Woods Road Improvements project has been completed at a substantial cost savings 

resulting in the need to amend the assessment roll. 

  

The proposed project cost estimates were projected at approximately $639,325.00, however the actual 

costs have totaled $566,293.42. The cost savings requires amending the original assessment roll due to 

exceeding 5% of the original assessment. The outcome of said savings equates to reducing each of the 67 

parcel assessments by $1,090.02.  

 

 

 

 

Financial Impact 

Is a Budget Amendment Required? ☐Yes ☒No 

 

 

 

 

Attachments 

Hartland Woods Resolution Adjusting Roll  
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RESOLUTION NO. 22-R0XX 

 
CONFIRMATION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ROLL; LIEN; 

PAYMENT AND COLLECTION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 

 
At  a  regular  meeting  of  the  Township  Board  of  Hartland  Township,  Livingston  County, 

Michigan, held at the Township Hall in said Township on August 16, 2022, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
 
 

PRESENT:   
 
 
 
 

ABSENT: 
 
 
 
 

The following preamble and resolution were offered by                                                            and 
 

seconded by                                               . 
 
 
 

WHEREAS,  the  Township  Board  of  the  Township  of  Hartland  (the  "Township"), 

pursuant to Act 188 of the Public Acts of Michigan of 1954, as amended ("Act 188"), by resolution 

adopted March 21, 2017, resolved its intention to proceed on petitions to make improvements 

consisting of road repairs and paving within the Hartland Woods Subdivision including Deanna 

Drive, Hartland Woods, Harold Lane and Placid Way, private roads within the Township (the 

"Improvements") in a proposed special assessment district in the Township; and
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Hartland Township Board of Trustees 
Resolution No. 22-R018 

August 16, 2022 

Page 2 of 9 

 

 
 
 

WHEREAS, by resolution adopted on August 17, 2021, the Township Board established a 

special assessment district known as the Hartland Woods Road Improvements Special Assessment 

District No. 1 (the "District") and approved the plans and estimates of cost for the Improvements; 

and 

WHEREAS, the District was established to fund road repairs and paving within the 

Hartland Woods Subdivision including Deanna Drive, Hartland Woods, Harold Lane, and Placid 

Way, private roads within the Township (the “Improvements”); and 

WHEREAS,   The  special  assessment  roll  prepared  by  the  Township  Supervisor, 

reported  to  the  Township  Board,  and  amended  by  the  Township  Board,  in  the  amount  of 

$639,325 was confirmed and known and designated for the District as Special Assessment Roll 

Number 1 (the original "Roll") at 7:00 p.m. local time on October 19, 2021, at the Township 

Hall in the Township 

WHEREAS, construction of the Improvements is now complete and a final accounting of 

actual costs have been calculated and reported to the Township and based on the actual costs of 

the Improvements, the Township wishes to amend the Original Roll to reflect the actual costs of 

the Improvements; 

WHEREAS, The Township Board has approved funding the Improvements through an 

Interfund Loan between the General Fund and the Special Assessment District Number 1, under 

the provisions of Resolution 22-R017; and 

WHEREAS,  the Township Treasurer has determined that the highest available interest rate 

currently offered is .95%; and  
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Hartland Township Board of Trustees 
Resolution No. 22-R018 

August 16, 2022 

Page 3 of 9 

 

 

WHEREAS,  in keeping with past practice of charging an additional 1.0% on special 

assessments in order to protect the Township’s investment earnings in case of early payoffs and 

delinquencies, the Special Assessment District Number 1 will be charged 1.95% annually on all 

unpaid amounts. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
1.       The  Original  Roll  is  hereby  amended  as  set  forth  in  Exhibit  A,  which  is 

incorporated by reference into this Resolution (the “Amended Roll”). 

2.       The Township Clerk shall endorse on the Amended Roll the date of this meeting as 

the date of confirmation of said Amended Roll. 

3.         All special assessments contained in the Amended Roll including any part thereof 

deferred as to payment shall from the date of confirmation of the Amended Roll, pursuant to Act 

188, constitute a lien upon the respective parcels of land assessed. Such lien shall be of the same 

character and effect as the lien created for Township taxes and shall include accrued interest and 

penalties. 

4.       The  special  assessments  made  in  the  Amended  Roll  are  hereby  ordered  and 

directed to be collected and the Township Clerk shall deliver the Amended Roll to the Township 

Treasurer with his warrant attached thereto, which said warrant shall command the Township 

Treasurer  to  collect  the  special  assessments  in  the  Amended  Roll  in  accordance  with  the 

direction of the Township Board in respect thereto, and which warrant shall further require the 

Township Treasurer to include as a delinquent tax any unpaid special assessment which is 

delinquent on the last day of February, and the delinquent taxed returned to the County Treasurer 

the next day pursuant to Section 55 of the General Property Tax Act, MCL 211.55. The form of 

said warrant is attached as Exhibit B. 
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Hartland Township Board of Trustees 
Resolution No. 22-R018 

August 16, 2022 

Page 4 of 9 

 

5.       Upon receiving the  Amended  Roll  and  warrant,  the Township  Treasurer shall 

proceed to collect the several amounts assessed therein, and charge interest of 1.95% on the unpaid  

 

principal balances.  Interest shall be charged for four (4) months in the first year of collection and 

12 months for each remaining year afterwards. 

6.       The Township Clerk shall, as soon as possible but in no event more than seven (7) 

days after confirmation of the Amended Roll, send notice of the Amended Roll, in the form 

attached as Exhibit C, to the person responsible for payment of the ad valorem property taxes 

on, the record owner of, or party in interest in, each parcel of land assessed, at the address shown 

for such persons upon the last township tax assessment roll for ad valorem tax purposes which was 

reviewed by the Township Board of Review, subject to any subsequent changes in the names 

and addresses of the owners or parties listed thereon. 

7.         All actions heretofore taken by Township officials, employees, and agents with 

respect to the Improvements and proceedings under Act 188 are hereby ratified and confirmed. 

8.       All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith shall be and the same are 

hereby rescinded. 

A vote on the foregoing resolution was taken and was as follows: 

ADOPTED: 

YEAS: 
 

 
 

NAYS: 

ABSENT: 

 

 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN                    ) 

) 

COUNTY OF LIVINGSTON            ) 
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Hartland Township Board of Trustees 
Resolution No. 22-R018 

August 16, 2022 

Page 5 of 9 

 

 

 

I, the undersigned, the duly qualified and acting Township Clerk of the Township of 

Hartland, Livingston County, Michigan, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing is a true and 

complete copy of certain proceedings taken by the Township Board of said Township at a 

regular meeting held on the 16th day of August, 
2022. 

 

 
 
 
 

Larry Ciofu, Hartland Township Clerk
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EXHIBIT A 

 
TOWNSHIP OF HARTLAND 

LIVINGSTON COUNTY, MICHIGAN 

 
HARTLAND WOODS ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 

AMENDED SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 
 

 
 

The Township  Board has  tentatively  determined  that  all  or part  of the cost  of said 

Improvements shall be specially assessed against each of the following described lots and parcels 

of land, which parcels are all located within Hartland Woods Subdivision, Hartland Township, 

Michigan, and benefited by the Improvements and which together comprise the following amended 

special assessment district: 

 
HARTLAND WOODS ROAD IMPROVEMENTS 

SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO.1 

 
Lots and parcels numbered: 

 

PID Address O

w

ne

r 

Assessment 

4708-29-100-007 1789 
TRUST 

HARTLAND WOODS POLLACK TRUST $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-001 9209 PLACID WAY KIRKPATRICK CHARLES III & DEB $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-002 9231 

 

PLACID WAY HOYER RONALD J & JENNIFER R $8,452.14 
4708-29-101-003 9253 PLACID WAY BERNARDI NICHOLAS P & SUSAN J $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-004 9275 PLACID WAY KALOWICK CARY S & MICHAEL K $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-005 9311 

1627 

PLACID WAY MEEK RANDALL T & TAMARA A $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-006 1627 HAROLD LANE HARRIS STEVEN D & ANDREA $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-007 1639 HAROLD LANE EPP RODGER & SUSAN $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-008 1717 

11 

HARTLAND WOODS BICKEL BRIAN L & LAURA M $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-009 1823 HARTLAND WOODS LAMBERT BRETT A $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-010 1853 HARTLAND WOODS MITCHELL JEFFREY I & KRISTA A $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-011 1875 HARTLAND WOODS FOREMAN GARY L & EMMA TRUST $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-012 1899 HARTLAND WOODS KOVACS JANET TRUST $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-013 1919 HARTLAND WOODS MILLER KOLBY $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-014 1922 HARTLAND WOODS GAINER JOHN & MARY $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-015 1902 HARTLAND WOODS QUINN MARK $8,452.14 
4708-29-101-016 1882 HARTLAND WOODS CLARK ROBERT J & MARY FRANCES $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-017 1864 HARTLAND WOODS ROBERTS MARK L & BARBARA J $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-018 1838 HARTLAND WOODS STRATFORD JAMES M & KAREN R $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-019 1722 HARTLAND WOODS JOHNSON GREGORY A $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-020 1710 HARTLAND WOODS LARUWE JUSTIN D & NICOLE M $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-021 1698 HARTLAND WOODS FITZGERALD BRANDON & KATIE L $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-022 1686 HARTLAND WOODS SEVERINSEN BRANDON A & CHRISTI $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-023 1674 HARTLAND WOODS DICK RONALD N & SUZANNE M $8,452.14 
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4708-29-101-024 1662 HARTLAND WOODS SCOTT MATHEW J & SARAH E $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-025 1650 HARTLAND WOODS KURTZ KENNETH R & EMILY R $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-026 1638 HARTLAND WOODS BLASER STEVE J & ASHLEY L $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-027 1626 HARTLAND WOODS CURCURU VITO J & DEBORAH S $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-028 1608 HARTLAND WOODS RAISANEN DANIEL & CELIA $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-029 9531 PLACID WAY PARHAM PHILLIP $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-030 9507 PLACID WAY CURRENT MATHEW & ASHLEY $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-031 1602 HARTLAND WOODS SELASKY BONNIE $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-032 9441 PLACID WAY PILON STEPHEN M & KATHERINE M $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-033 1635 HARTLAND WOODS TOMASZEWSKI RITA & MICHAEL $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-034 1665 HARTLAND WOODS HORNING MARK & KATHLEEN $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-035 1654 HAROLD LANE MATSCHIKOWSKI STEVEN & 
ROSEMA 

$8,452.14 

4708-29-101-036 1632 HAROLD LANE GOODLASKIRICHARD CJR & DEBRA $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-037 9355 PLACID WAY CHAMBERLAIN RALPH M & DIANNE $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-038 9377 PLACID WAY OWENS KRISTEN A TRUST $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-039 9401 PLACID WAY RODRIGUEZ MEGAN $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-040 9516 PLACID WAY GROSS JAMES H & DIANA L $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-041 9498 PLACID WAY METCALF STEVEN M & HEATHER $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-042 9476 PLACID WAY MILLER RONALD S & KIMBERLY S $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-043 9454 PLACID WAY MCDANIEL KENNETH F & JANE E $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-044 9432 PLACID WAY ECONOMOU JOHN J & BETH A $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-045 9410 PLACID WAY DEPOY BRIAN & LORETTA $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-046 9388 PLACID WAY LUTZ GARY & DENISE $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-049 9322 PLACID WAY LACELLE JOSEPH C & JEANNINE M $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-050 9300 PLACID WAY SCHILD RICHARD J & TAMMY R $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-051 9278 PLACID WAY MONTROY JAMES $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-052 9256 PLACID WAY SCHILLINGER RICHARD & BARBARA $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-053 9234 PLACID WAY BEEBE CATHLENE & DEREK $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-054 9212 PLACID WAY ROMMEL JOHN F $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-056 9366 PLACID WAY JAKSA STELLA H $8,452.14 

4708-29-101-057 9344 PLACID WAY ROSSI ANTHONY & EMILY $8,452.14 

4708-29-102-001 1741 HARTLAND WOODS MYERS ASHLEY M & KLEVER KEVIN $8,452.14 

4708-29-102-002 1765 HARTLAND WOODS DEVERGILIO RICHARD & FREIDA $8,452.14 

4708-29-200-006 9600 PLACID WAY NEIL DENNIS J & JANET E $8,452.14 

4708-29-200-007 9580 PLACID WAY ANDERSON AARON & SHANNON $8,452.14 

4708-29-200-008 9560 PLACID WAY WHITMAN DANIEL W & DAWN L $8,452.14 

4708-29-200-019 1744 DEANNA DR RING THEODORE E & MARIE E $8,452.14 

4708-29-200-020 1700 DEANNA DR CAZAN LONDON KEVIN & GIANINA $8,452.14 

4708-29-200-021 1670 DEANNA DR TOMLINSON JAMES A TRUST $8,452.14 

4708-29-200-022 1620 DEANNA DR SLUSARSKI JEROME $8,452.14 

4708-29-200-023 9565 PLACID WAY BORYS PAUL $8,452.14 

4708-29-200-024 1701 DEANNA DR POHL FRANK $8,452.14 

4708-29-200-025 1745 DEANNA DR COPELAND DANIEL & JENNIFER $8,452.14 
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SUPERVISOR'S CERTIFICATE 

 
I, William J. Fountain, Supervisor of the Township of Hartland, hereby state that the 

above Special Assessment Amended Roll for the Hartland Woods Road Improvements Special 

Assessment District No. 1 was made pursuant to a resolution of the Township Board adopted on 

August 16, 2022 and in amending such Special Assessment Roll, I have, according to my best 

judgment, conformed in all respects to the directions contained in such resolution and the statutes 

of the State of Michigan. 
 

 

Date:  August 16, 2022 
 

 

William J. Fountain, Township Supervisor 
 
 
 
 

 
 
CERTIFICATE OF CONFIRMATION

 

I hereby certify that the above Amended Special Assessment Roll was confirmed on 

 
August 16, 2022 by resolution of the Township Board of the Township of Hartland. 

 

 

Date:  August 16, 2022 
 

 

Larry Ciofu, Hartland Township Clerk
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EXHIBIT B 

 
WARRANT OF TOWNSHIP CLERK 

 

 
 

I, Larry Ciofu, the Township Clerk of the Township of Hartland, Livingston County, Michigan, 

hereby direct and command the Township Treasurer, Kathie Horning, to amend the assessments 

set forth on the attached Hartland Woods Road Improvements Special Assessment District No. 

1, Special Assessment Roll No. 1, in accordance with the directions of the Township Board in 

respect thereto set forth in a Resolution adopted by the Township Board on August 16, 2022, 

amending such special assessment roll of the Township.  In particular, you shall include as a 

delinquent tax any unpaid special assessment which is delinquent on the last day of February, 

and the delinquent taxes returned to the County Treasurer the next day, pursuant to Section 55 of 

the General Property Tax Act, MCL 211.55. 

 
 

Date:  August 16, 2022                     

Larry Ciofu, Hartland Township Clerk
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EXHIBIT C 

 
NOTICE OF AMENDED SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 

 
TO ALL PROPERTY OWNERS OR PARTIES IN INTEREST IN THE HARTLAND 

WOODS ROAD SPECIAL ASSESSMENT DISTRICT NO. 1 (the "District"): 

 
Following the August 16, 2022 public meeting to amend the special assessment roll, the  

Township  Board  confirmed  the  amended  special  assessment  roll  for  the  District  on August 

16, 2022 

 
You may pay your remaining special assessment balance in ten (10) remaining annual 

installments of principal and interest, or you may avoid interest by prepaying your special 

assessment in full. At any time thereafter, the balance of your special assessment may be prepaid 

in full, with interest accrued through the month in which the assessment is paid.  Interest will 

accrue on the unpaid balance at the rate of two percent (1.95%) per annum. 

 
The assessment on your parcel has been amended from $9,542.16 to $8,452.14 

(principal only) 
 
For additional information about the assessment, call Hartland Township at (810) 632-7498. 

 

 
 

Permanent Parcel No. 
 

Assessment:     
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Hartland Township Board of Trustees Meeting Agenda Memorandum 
 
 
Submitted By: Robert M. West, Township Manager 

Subject: Assessing Department Annual Update 

Date: August 11, 2022 

 

Recommended Action 

No formal action required by the Township Board. 

 

Township Assessor, Jim Heaslip, will be providing updates for Township Board of Trustees regarding the 

current state of assessing in Hartland Township as well as future projections based upon data from the 

State of Michigan. 
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